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HEARING ON H.R. 856, THE EDUCATIONAL RE-
SEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND DISSEMINA-
TION EXCELLENCE ACT

THURSDAY, MAY 27, 1993

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,

SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION AND CIVIL RicHTS,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to cal], at 10 a.m., Room 2261,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Major R. Owens, Chairman,
presiding.

Members present: Representatives Owens, Scott and Ballenger.

Also present: Senator Riegle.

Staff present: Maria Cuprill, Wanser Green, Laurence Peters,
and Andy Hartman.

Chairman OwEeNs. Please take your seats. The hearing of the
Subcommittee on Select Education and Civil Rights is now in ses-
sion.

This is the last hearing that the subcommittee will hold before
H.R. 856, the bill that reauthorizes the Office of Educational Re-
search and Improvement, is marked up by the Committee on Edu-
cation and Labor next month.

If we are going to enter a serious debate about educational
reform, it is imperative that we have a Federal educational re-
search and development strategy, one designed on a scale large
enough to provide meaningful support for the ambitious national
education goals. OERI has been trivialized and its importance di-
minished by Neanderthal thinking that refuses to accept and un-
derstand that every significant endeavor—whether in health, sci-
ence, agriculture, defense, or space exploration—has relied on re-
search and development to ensure its success. We cannot continue
to spend less than one-tenth of 1 percent of the education budget
on research and development and meet the national education
goals or change the direction of a decaying education system. Fads
will continue to replace sustained efforts at school improvement.

The National Research Council’s committee report, The Federal
Role in Education Research ard Education Reform: Roles for the
Office of Educational Research and Improvement, played an impor-
tant role in last year's passage of the House reauthorization bill.
Today, we move to hear testimony on the work of the National Re-
search Council.

Our second panel will discuss an innovative approach to dissemi-
nation and professional development. As part of a strategic plan to
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meet the national education goals, the Michigan Partnership for
New Education developed a network of universities to work with
schools, businesses, and communities as local area partnerships to
bring research much closer to practice. Specific schools and their
teachers have become centers of innovation, discovering, develop-
ing, and disseminating new approaches to reinventing teaching and
learning.

I welcome today’s witnesses and I look forward to their testimo-
ny.

I might add that we basically think that the bill which we devel-
oped last year and which passed the House of Representatives is
still the best answer to the problems of developing a structure for

be refined and adjusted and improved in
why we are having today’s hearing.
[The prepared statement of Hon. Major R. Owens follows:]

STATEMENT oF HoN. MaJor R. Owens, a REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE
STATE OF NEW YORK

This is the last hearing that the subcommittee will hold before H.R. 856 [the bill
that reauthorizes the Office of Educational Research and Improvement], is marked
ittee on Education and Labor next month.

portance diminished, by

S to accept and understand that every significant

endeavor [whether in health, science, agriculture, defense. or space exploration) has

relied on research and development to ensure its success. We cannot continue to

spend less than one-tenth of one percent of the education budget on research and

development and meet the national education goals or change the direction of a de-

caying education system. Fads will continue to replace sustained efforts at school
improvement.

The National Research Council's committee report, The Federal Role in Educa-
tion Research and E. ! i ]

thorization bill. Toda
search Council.

The second panel will discuss an innovative mode! on appronches to dissemination
and professional development. As part of a strategic plan to meet the national edu-
cation goals, the Michigan Partnership for New Education developed a network of
universities to work with schools, businesses, and communities as local area part-

hips to bring research much closer to practice. Specific schools and their teach-
ers have become centers of innovation, discovering, developing, and disseminating
hew appreaches to reinventing teaching and learning.

I welcome today's witnesses and I look forward to their testimony.

Chairman Owgns.] yield to Mr. Ballenger for an opening state-
ment.

Mr. BALLENGER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, last year, you and I worked long and hard to de-
velop a bill which would continue and improve the Federal role in
educational research. As a businessman and a Congressman con-
cerned about the state of education in this country, I supported the
general thrust of our bill last year, and it would be my hope that
we could come to an agreement quickly this year, based on the bi-
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partisan bill that passed the House in the 1¢2d Congress and pro-
vided new direction to the Office of Educational Research.

I am looking forward to the testimony this morning, especially
from Mr. Ball who, as a businessman himself. can speak to the im-
portance of R&D from a private business perspective. I am especial-
ly interested in his views and those of others here this morning on
the government’s issues we have struggled with on this reauthor-
ization; and I thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Mr. Scott.

Mr. Scort. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the fact that
you are convening this hearing on H.R. 856, the Educational Re-
search, Development and Dissemination Excellence Act.

As we continue to debate educational reform in this country, I
believe that it is essential that part of the discussion be focused on
the manner in which educational research is tfunded, conducted
and the results disseminated. There are too many statistics today
that point to areas in which our students lag behind students from
other parts of the world. Furthermore, too many of our young
people are at risk and our current educational system is not meet-
ing their needs. Instead of becoming contributors to society, they
are becoming drains on society, often ending up in our prison
system. We have to focus educational research on meeting the
needs of these at-risk youth.

We have a President, a Secretary of Education and a Congress
committed to moving America soundly into the next century. In
order to accomplish this, I feel that we must look at what we are
teaching our young people and the strategies that are most effec-
tive for transmitting that knowledge. Educational research is vital,
but research for the sake of research accomplishes very little. We
must look at how the findings are disseminated, how the interven-
tions are replicated, and how the programs that are proven effec-
tive are institutionalized.

1 am looking forward to hearing from the scholars whom you
have convened today. I am particularly pleased to welcome Dr.
Carlton Brown, a witness on the second panel. Dr. Brown is the
Dean of the School of Liberal Arts and Education at Hampton Uni-
versity in Hampton, Virginia, in my distr t. I have known Dr.
Brown for many years, and he brings a gre deal of knowledge
and expertise to this topic; I am anxious to hear his recommenda-
tions.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Owens. Thank you. I am pleased to welcome our first
panel. Welcome back Mr. G. Carl Ball of the Committee on the
Federal Role in Education Research, National Research Council,
National Academy of Sciences. He was here before as a business-
man, testifying on the same legislation. Also, Dr. Andrew Porter,
Cemmittee on the Federal Role in Education Research, National
Research Council, National Academy of Sciences.

Gentlemen, welcome. We have your written statements which
will be entered in their entirety into the record. Please feel free to
highlight your written statements.
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STATEMENTS OF G. CARL BALL, COMMITTEE ON THE FEDERAL
ROLE IN EDUCATION RESEARCH, NATIONAL RESEARCH COUN-
CIL, NATIONAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCES, GLEN ELLYN, ILLI-
NOIS; A ID ANDREW PORTER, Ph.D.. COMMITTEE ON THE FED-
ERAL ROLE IN EDUCATION RESEARCH, NATIONAL RESEARCH
COUNCIL, NATIONAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCES. WISCONSIN
CENTER FOR EDUCATION RESEARCH, MADISON. WISCONSIN

Chairman Owens. Mr. Ball.

Mr. BaLr. Chairman. If it is agreeable, Mx. Porter will go first.

Chairman OweNs. That is up to you.

Dr. PorTeR. Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the
subcommittee, thank you for this opportunity to comment on the
reauthorization of OERI. My name is Andy Porter. I am a member
of the National Academy of Sciences panel on the Federal Role in
Education Research, and I will speak to the recommendations of
our report which I know you have a copy of.

I am also a professor at the University of Wisconsin, Madison,
where I direct an education research center, the Wisconsin Center
for Education Research. We have two of the OERI research centers
housed in the center. I direct the one on school organization and
restructuring and the one on math teaching and learning. Collec-
tively, our support from OERI constitutes one-third of the support
of the center I direct; another third comes from the National Sci-
ence Foundation, and the final third comes from private founda-
tions.

I know OERI quite well. In the mid-1970s, I worked there for a
brief time. As you know, OERI has a very troubled aistory. It has
had too many different directors. It has had too many assistant sec-
retaries. It has had too frequent reorganizations. It has often been
a political football. In the early years, it had sharply declining
funding, and its low level of funding has continued today. Never-
theless, even with the tiny investment that has been made in edu-
cation research through OERI, much good has been done, and I am
very encouraged by President Clinton’s nomination of Sharon Rob-
inson as the next Assistant Secretary of OERI.

I have four brief points to make. My first point is this: Authori-
zation for OERI is urgently needed. Education research and devel-
opment is the best hope for a brighter future in education for our
children. Until there is a better understanding of education and
how it works, I think we are destined to go from one fad to the
next in education reform. Without authorization of OERI, the
agency will lack the direction that it must have; and it is even pos-
sible that badly needed increases in support will be held hostage by
the lack of reauthorization.

My second point is to applaud you and members of the commit-
tee for crafting what I think is an excellent bill. Qur National
Academy of Sciences report can be read as strong support for many
of the components of your bill. We agree upon the importance of
education research and development. We agree upon the central
role that OERI should play in providing leadership for education
research and development.

We agree that appropriations need to be dramatically increased.
On a more specific level, the mission that we crafted as a simpli-
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fied, more sharply focused mission, agrees exactly with the mission
you put forth in your bill. Expand fundamental knowledge, pro-
mote excellence and equity, monitor the state of education.

We agree in general terms on the appropriate organization for
OERI, ofganized into research institutes—we call them R&D direc-
torates—and a reform assistance and dissemination office, which
we call a Reform Assistance Directorate.

We agree that the Agency’s current funding is badly out of bal-
ance. More field-initiated studies are needed desperately to comple-
{ngnt the excellent work being done in the research centers and
abs.

More long-term work must be supported if we are going to see
education research through to improved practice. More basic re-
search is desperately needed. Our report called for building learn-
ing communities to better connect research and practice. Your bill
calls for regional partnerships and America 2000 communities,
which I think have high promise for doing exactly that.

We agree that the infrastructure of the R&D system must be
strengthened and especially that we must find ways to support in-
creased participation of minorities in the research community.

My third point concerns the policy board. Like you, we, the Na-
tional Academy of Sciences committee, agree that a policy board of
distinguished individuals is needed; and that one-third of those in-
dividuals should be researchers and that the remainder of the
board should be a balanced representation of practitioners, parents,
employers, policymakers and other noteworthy citizens for their
contribution to education. Unfortunately, this has not always been
the case for OERI and its predecessor, NIE.

We also agree with the purpose of this board to bring focus and
stability to the Agency and to buffer the Agency from the many
political pushes and pulls that characterize education.

But we have a few important points of difference on this board.
H.R. 856 says the policy board will determine priorities that should
guide the work of OERI. Our record advises that the policy board
establish a process for developing priorities. We believe that broad-
based involvement of the expertise o1’ the Nation is absolutely cru-
cial to the establishment of priorities for OERI. The board, the
policy board of OERI, must not set priorities based on their own
thoughts, by themselves.

H.R. 856 requires publishing the priorities of OERI annually.
That sounds okay. But I urge you not to do anything that would
bring greater instability to the Agency; the priorities of the Agency
must remain fairly stable over time, it the field is to respond and if
progress is to be made.

We also doubt the advisability of giving the board its own staff.
We believe that the board’s having its own staff may bring the
board to have conflict between itself and the Agency as we have
seen in other parts of the government, for example, between the
National Center for Education Statistics and the NAEP board.

Also, we believe that the board nmiust accomplish its important
mission without accidentally stumbling into a process of microman-
agement. But I believe that the research priorities plan in your bill
might invite just such micromanagement, for example, when it
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says the board would set goals for expenditures, specify objectives
and set distributional resources within research institutes.

My fourth point concerns stability. OERI and its predecessor,
NIE, have had nine different directors or assistant secretaries over
the course of the past 19 years. This averages to a new leader every
two years. Often the new assistant secretary or new director has
sought to reorganize the Agency. This lack of stability has been
hard on the field, and it has been demoralizing to the staff of
OERI. It must stop. We strongly urge a 6-year renewable term for
the assistant secretary of OERI to bring stability to the Agency.

Let me close by addressing a comment I hear all too often. I hear
people say all we need to do is to put into practice that which we
already know about education. This is simply wrong. It is the kind
of thinking that hurts our children. Without education research,
there won't be education based on those research insights, there
won’t be education of the quality we must have.

It would be like saying in medicine we don’t need any more re-
search back at the time when a smallpox vaccine was introduced.
We can stop right there, give the vaccine, and that is all we need
to know about chemistry, biology and applied medicine. Had this
been done, all the many advances in health care that have oc-
curred since then would not be available to us. And we wouldn’t be
positioned to solve such crucial problems that are with us now,
such as AIDS.

More education research is desperately needed. Dissemination is
important, but without something to disseminate, dissemination is
a waste of time. The Federal role of OERI is crucial to success.
Thank you very much.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Mr. BaLL. Thank you, Chairman Owens, members of the Educa-
tion and Labor subcommittee. I am very pleased to be given an op-
portunity to address your committee on the subject of the report of
the National Research Council’s Committee on the Federal Role in
Education Research.

Let me reintroduce myself briefly. I come from a worldwide in-
dustry which is highly competitive, the vegetable and flower seed
industry. The George C. Ball Company employs several thousand
people worldwide. We invest roughly 10 percent of our revenue into
research to improve existing products and develop new ones with
the sure knowledge, if we didn’t do this, we probably would be out
of business in 5 years, driven off by Dutch and Japanese competi-
tors who would spend more on research than we do.

A couple of years ago, when I was asked to serve on this commit-
tee, I quickly recognized that it was made up of a group of out-
standing scientists and educational practitioners. As a businessman
with several decades of experience in managing industrial re-
search, I found myself rather an outsider to the education estab-
lishment. But this position allowed me to have broad outlines
which may have been partially hidden from the view of insiders be-
cause of their very closeness to the field. I would like to share some
of these outlines with you.

Our modern society is a creature of research. Much of this has
occurred in the last century. And it is said more scientists are alive
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f(qd?iy than have existed in all the previous generations of man-
ind.

One has only to think of major fields like transportation—jet en-
gines, for example, powering jet aircraft which, in turn, have em-
powered a new era of personal transport. A jet engine looks simple
enough, but it is, in fact, an exceedingly complex device, resulting
partially from the researcher’s art. This art is one of the reasons
why the engine has performed so effectively in moving people
about. It is well and carefully designed by people steeped in science
and research as well as practical technology.

One finds the same phenomenon in agriculture and electronics
and, of course, in medicine. I was in Washington last month with
the Association of Supervisors and Curriculum Developers and
heard Maya Angelou state her belief that education is, quote, “a
matter of life and death,” end quote.

If she is half-right, we should surely increase our expenditures
on education research to better inform education practices and en-
i’gance the opportunity of students to live successtul and healthy
ives.

Our committee quickly recognized that education research fund-
ing is clearly inadequate. You can see a graphic representation of
this in our report, page 102, which I believe is in your folder. A
quick glance will reveal the differences in federally funded re-
search of education versus comparable fields. The differences are
order of magnitude 10, 20 or 30 times.

It should be pointed out that in terms of the underfunding of
educational research, the situation is even more dire than is re-
flected in these graphs, the reason being that most other fields
have major research contributions from the private sector, from
business and industry. Both in pharmaceuticals and electronics,
firms like Merck and Hewlett-Packard, commit in excess of a bil-
lion doliars per year to research. This type of private-sector support
of research is very little seen in education.

I would like to approach this issue from the standpoint of critical
mass. Aeronautics can be a useful metaphor her.. Getting an air-
plane off the ground, you have to reach critical mass of airspeed
quickly in order to sustain flight in the event one of your engires
stops running. You need a certain minimum critical mass of air-
speed. Throughout the deliberations of our committee, we sensed
this kind of problem in the Federal Role in Education Research.

Education being a $300 billion industry, $300 million, which is a
one-thousandth part of the education industry’s funds, cannot sup-
port adequate research efforts. There is o lack of critical mass. Let
me give a couple of examples of this lack of critical mass from the
current OERI enterprise.

OERI funds centers at universities: Each is responsible for an im-
portant topic area and conducts most of the federally sponsored re-
search in that area. There is a Center for Schooling for the Disad-
vantaged; one on Work Force Preparation; one on School Leader-
ship and several others. Most of the centers are funded at about a
million dollars per year. That supports only three, four, or five full-
time researchers, hardly critical mass, considering the magnitude
of challenges in education.

The same situation exists with the regional OERI laboratories.

11
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In some years, OERI has invited field-initiated proposals from re-
searchers throughout the country. In each of those years, there has
been only about $1 million available for awards, despite receiving
hundreds of proposals. Only about a dozen are funded and, by law,
they are limited to 18 months. According to my experience, this is
not the kind of sustained funding and effort which is required for
successful research. The most effective research programs often
take years to complete.

I would like to offer one final example to illustrate this principle
of critical mass. It has to do with my firm's research environment.
In our segment of the seed industry, we commit 50 individual pro-
fessional researchers to our program. Consider this: If our funding
for research were to be made to match the education industry, re-
search funding in a comparable way, we would have to fire 49% of
our 50 researchers and commit the half-time remaining person to
keep score on our competitors to see how long it would be before
their product introductions would drive us from the marketplace.

So my first main point is really a question: What is the differ-
ence between agriculture and education that would cause agricul-
ture to be researched with a one-tenth part of its funds and educa-
tion to be researched with a one-thousandth part of its funds? That
is my key question.

Incidentally, it is interesting to note that back in 1973, someone
had the vision to actually fund education research to a scale rough-
ly 3% times what we are doing today in constant dollars. However,
as can be seen on the graph on pages 96 and 97, also in your
packet, this Federal program was quickly cut down to its present
low level of funding.

In discussing education research, the question is sometimes
asked, what is it that we should research? Our committee's assign-
ment was to look at organization, goveinment’s funding and relat-
ed issues, not the research agenda; but I found it very interesting
that the first several hours of our committee's deliberation were
spent making cases for the need fo~ more research in education.
We couldn’t resist that. Each of us seemed to kave his own favorite
research objective and agenda.

Mine was television. We know so little about the impact of televi-
sion on our children and the education process for good or ill.
Sometimes when 1 get up from watching certain programs, I
wonder if TV is not some kind of neo-Pied Piper, winnowing our
children off into unwanted directions.

Recently, Senator Simon told us about 80 studies that show that
violence on television can have adverse effects on youth. But we
know little about how television might be used to strengthen the
adolescents in our society.

Back to our committee’s concern about an education research
agenda: Other members wanted to look at the plight of minorities,
teacher issues, governance, finance. Our chairman had to work
very hard to bring us back to our plan and keep us on task. But it
was clear to me from this exercise with a group of keen minds, in-
terested in education, that there is indeed no lack of researchable
education issues.

It is said that all politics is local. Perhaps the same thing can be
said about education. Evervone on our committee agreed with our
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principle recommendation regarding field-initiated research fund-
ing. This is set forth on pages 166 to 169 in our report. We are pro-
posing $267 million annually in increased funding, overall; roughly
two-thirds of that increuse, we propose, would involve field-initiat-
ed research. We believe this will bring balance tc the issue of local
versus centralized research.

This shift to field-initiated research funding would provide a
needed and missing 1 :cal control to our overall education research
program. This shift to local control will match the deeply rooted
local orientation of our education system.

So my second and last main point is the shift in emphasis to
field-initiated research, and the validity thereof.

It is not the job of our committee to comment on or suggest
where money for this additional appropriation might be found.
However, it is hard for me as a businessman to think about how to
organize and fund a research program without also thinking about
where the funds will come from. I suggest looking at our major De-
partment of Education programs and wonder if OERI can provide
them with important research functions.

Finally, having read a draft of House Resolution 856, it seems to
me that our Academy recommendations are reasonably close to
your bill in most issues with no irresolvable conflicis apparent. I
wasn’t able to compare the budget figures, but my impression from
the description of your proposed policy board is that such a board
may be rather deeply involved in what might be considered operat-
ing issues, which could place it in conflict with the role ol the di-
rector.

This is a common problem in business: governing boards either
over—or underplaying their role. The worst condition might be
what we call micromanaging, where policy or governance boards
get into the operation of an enterprise. This can be a lose-lose situ-
ation., as most governing boards are not in a position to effectively
deal with the minutia of operating decisions and our presence at
this level tends to vitiate the effactiveness of operating administra-
tors.

It is my recommendation that the board should control policy
and give direction, but avoid management issues which are in-
volved in the operation of the enterprise.

However, I would not want these comments to overshadow the
substantial agreement between our two committees on the future
shape of OERL I am impressed and heartened by this; H.R. 856
seems to me right on track.

Thank you for your attention. I would be happy to answer any
questions you might have regarding my testimony.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Porter and Mr. Ball follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF ANDREW C. PORTER AND G. CARL BALL
on behalf of the National Academy of Sciences® Committee
on the Federal Roie in Education Research
before the House Education and Civil Rights Select Subcommittee

May 27, 1993

INTRODUCTION

The Office of Educrtional Research and Improvement (OERI) in the Department of
Education is responsible for a broad range of research, development, and dissemination
activities. Over the years, OERI and its predecessor agencies have been subject to
widespread criticism: researchers have often claimed that support for education research has
been insufficient, misguided, and poorly managed; teachers and principals have often " en
unaware of the office or claimed it hasn’t done much to improve their schools; and members
of Congress have often expressed dissatisfaction and frustration--as much with their votes as
with their words.

With these historic problems in mind, with heightened national attention on
educational issues, and with its scheduled congressional reauthorization approaching, OERI
asked the National Academy of Sciences in the Fall of 1990 to consider how it could better
carry out its mandate to improve education in the United States. The Academy, through its

National Research Council (NRC), convened 15 distinguished experts to conduct the study.

The following remarks are drawn from the resultirg report, Research and Education Reform:

Roles for the Office of Educational Research and Improvement (1992).

! The National Academy of Sciences’ Commitiee on the Federal Role in Education
Research was chaired by Richard C. Atkinson. The Study Director for the project was
Gregg B. Jackson.

[€)
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RECOMMENDATICNS OF THE NRC COMMITTEE
We begin by enumerating the recommendations made by the NRC committee. These
include recommendations for strengthening the govemnance and mission of OERI, for
restructuring the agency to better focus and coordinate its efforts, and for improving its
operations. The final recommendatons call for substantially increased funding--or in the

absence of significant increases, a very much narrower mandate for OERI.

Mission, Governance and Agenda

A-1 The mission of OERI should be to provide leadership in:

. expanding fundamental knowledge and understanding of education;
. promoting excellence and equity in education; and
. monitoring the state of education.

The mission should be accomplished in collaboration with researchers, teachers,
school administrators, parents, students, employers, and policy nakers.

A-2  OERI should support a balanced portfolio of acti;/i&ies: basic research, applied
research, statistics, development, evaluation, dissemination, and technical assistance;
field-initiated and institutionally based R&D; and long-term sustained efforts and
responses to newly identified needs and opportunities. To do so, OERI must
substantially expand support for basic research, field-initiated research, and sustained

R&D activities.

13
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OERI should have a director appointed by the President, in consultation with the
agency’s board and with the advice and consent of the Senate, for a €-year renewable
term.

OERI's agenda setting should be guided by a 24-member poiicy-making board. At
least one-third of the membership should be distinguished researchers who have done
work on education issues, complemented by a balanced representation of practitioners,
parents, employers, policy makers, and others who have made noteworthy
contributions to excellence in education.

The OERI board should establish a process to develop priorities for OERI's agenda.
The process should involve active participation of the various groups concerned with
education. These priorities should be set so as to maintain the continuity, stability,
and flexibility needed to conduct high quality research and to effect educational
change.

The OERI board should nublish a biennial report on federally funded education R&D
that describes its accomplishments, summarizes the programmatic activities and
funding levels throughout the federal government, identifies unmet needs, and makes
recommendations for future directions.

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB), the National Science Foundation
(NSF), or the Federal Coordinating Committee for Science Engineering and
Technology (FCCSET) should extend data collection programs, in consultation with
OERI, to provide annual data on federal agencies’ program activities and expenditures

for education R&D.

I6
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Organization and Functions
OERI's research anc. &evelopment activities should be organized under several R&D
directorates. Direct support for school change should be organized under a single
Reform Assistance Directorate. Organization and management practices should forge
appropriate linkages and coordination ameng the all the directorates and the field.
Each of OERI's R&ID directorates should allocate substantial resources to support
field-initiated research for both basic and applied work.
Each R&D directorate should support national R&D centers for pursuing coherent and
sustained programs o basic research, applied research, and development.
OERI's regionally governed laboratories should be administered by the Reform
Assistance Directorate and converied to Reform Assistance Laboratories (RALs) with
liaison and assistance utaff assigned to each state in their respective regions.
The Reform Assistance Directorate should support the research-based refinement and
rigorous evaluation of innovative programs and processes that have the greatest
potential for use in schcol reform and help schools in using these programs and

processes. This recommendation represents an expansion of the functions currently

carried out by the Progr: m Effectiveness Panel (PEP) and the National Diffusion

Network (NDN).
The Fund for the Improvement an¢ Reform of Schools ard Teaching (FIRST)
programs that support locz] school-based reforms should be administered by the

Reform Assistance Directc.ate, should be modified to require utilization of research

74-815 0 - 93 - 2
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in development of the improvements, should involve teachers and principals in the
development process, and should provide sustained support for these efforts.

The Reform Assistance Directorate should foster development of a national electronic
network that allows all concerned with education to access research and exemplary
practice information. The system should incorporate an enhanced ERIC.

The National Center for Educational Statistics (NCES) should remain as a separate
office in OERI with careful attention to preserving its scientific independence.
Staffing 'evels should be approximately doubled as soon as practical to be
commensurate with the expanded responsibilities NCES has been given over the past
5 years.

OERI should work with teacher and admin‘strator education programs, state agencies,
aild local districts to help practitioners an | researchers create leaming communities
that use research findings, practitioners’ craft wisdom, and pursue new inquiry in the
quest for educational reform.

OERI should develop research, training, and fellowship programs to attract high-
quality personnel into education research, with particular efforts to recruit

underrepresented minorities and schotlars in disciplines other than educatior:.

Operations

OERI should have independent authority for staffing, contracts, grants, and reporting.
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C-2  OERI should actively recruit highly qualified personnel from various disciplines for
OERI staff positions and should create an intellectually stimulating working
environment.

C-3  OERI's contract and grant application review process should provide an appropriate
balance between expertise in research and in practice for all proposals, with technical
research merit judged by research experts and programmatic relevance judged by
program experts.

C-4  OERI should implement a consensus development process involving distinguished
experts to review and report on the quality and implications of potentially important

bodies of research and evaluations that appear to have unclear or conflicting results.

Funding
D-1  To implement the committee's recommendations, OERI should be given substantial,
phased-in, increases in its budgets and staffing levels.
D-2  Unless OERI's budget is substantially increased in the near future. the mission and
activities of the agency should be significantly narrowed.
We now tumn to a discussion of some of the important themes in the committee's

report.

BACKGROUND
On the whole, the United States expects a great deal from its education system. Not

only do we expect the schools to impart the rudiments of learning, to equip citizens for

ERI
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economic survival, and to produce the kind of informed populace needed to sustain the
nation’s democratic instirutions, we expect them to mitigate economic and social inequalities,
find ways to circumvent difficult barriers of language, disability, and disadvantage. and to
provide an increasing array of social services. Even to approach these expectations, schools
need to be extraordinarily resilient and resourceful.

In the past decade, dozens of reports have identified serious problems with schooling
in America. Every state has mandated initiatives for reform, .nd countless local programs
and alliances have tried to bring about change and improvement. Intense pressures have built
up nationally for renewed attention to education, as indicated by the cali for national
education goals (National Education Goals Panel, 1991), the congressionally mandated rapid
growth of the Education and Human Resources Directorate at the National Science
Foundation, and former President Bush‘s_ AMERICA 2000 proposal for improving education
(Alexander, 1991).

There is no question about the significance of the challenges now facing U.S.
education. Part of the imperative for today's reforms comes from increasing academic and
intellectual demands of the workplace. Part of it comes “om the mediocre educational
attainments of a significant proportion of youth in the United States, particularly those in
low-income families and those of minonty status. Demogiaphic trends have also quickened
the reform impulse. The U.S. population is an aging populatior:, so that there will be
proportionately fewer workers to support retirees in the foreseeable future. In addition, the

popuiation groups that are expanding most rapidly, African Americans and particularly
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Hispanic Americans, are also at highest risk for school failure and the accompanying
likelihood of a marginal economic existence.

Many people have concluded that ad hoc improvements will not suffice to meet these
challenges; rather, a fundamental rethinking of education is necessary. The core idea is that
schooling should promote conceptual understanding, problem solving, and the ability to apply
knowledge and skills in new contexts and to real-world problems (Porter et al., 1991). A
variety of solutions have been proposed. both structural and substantive. Among the most
talked-about are a nationa! system of standards and assessments; school-site management;

school choice; abolition of ability grouping: outcome-based curricula; team teaching; ongoing

staff development; deep coverage instead of broad coverage as a curriculum principle;

community-based learning; small, stable, family-like instructional units of students and
teachers; the use of portfolios of student work to replace standardized tests; and parental
control of schools.

Whether these many suggestions can be knit into a workahle and effective program
for improving the nation’s schools remains to be seen. As a society. the United States has
been good at launching reforms; it has been less good at continuing them to completion
{(Cuban, 1990; Elmore and McLaughlin, 1988). And despite the growing national consensus
that the nation faces a major problem in education from kindergarten through high school (K-
12, fixing the problem--or even defining it adequately--remains a daunting challenge.

Education in the Urated States exists on a vast scale with annual budgets of $240
billion for just the K-12 component and more than $375 billion for the total education

enterprise--encompassing higher education, industrial education, and supporting
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organizations. Both the scale and the decentralized character of education make the
imposition of central solutions impossible. If schools in the United States are going to get
better, it will require the combined efforts and commitment of all concerned--parents,

teachers, administrators, and government officials. The challenge for federal anc state policy

makers is to create conditions that will make education reform more likely--to help schools

and communities equip themselves with the tools of reform.

THE ROLE OF RESEARCH

At the present time, the formulation of education policy is running far ahead of
education research--and this is cause for concern. Whether the initiative is school choice, or
national standards and assessments, new ideas are being advanced and implemented with littie
knowledge of how they will fare.

Few Americans wuuld deny that research has been a potent force for improved
medical care or the emergence of modern agriculture in the twentieth century. So axiomatic
is this to the business of agriculture, for example, that one of the nation's foremost seed
companies invested 40 years of effort in developing the seedless watermelon. When it
comes to education, however, it is difficult to find an equivalent example. Education
research is more likely to be dismissed as trivia‘l or irrelevart than it is to be considered a
fundamental ingredient in understanding how children learn and in improving how they are
taught.

Telling evidence of the low status of education research is the very small portion of

federal education funding that goes to research--just $350 million of $64.1 billion in fiscal
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1961. In comparison, the federal government spends 3 times as much for space research and
development, and 30 times as much for research related to heaith. Policy makers are not
alone in their general low regard for research as an integral part of a robust system of
education: teachers commonly indicate that they do not use research and do not see its
connection to what they do on a daily basis in the classroom (Louis et al., 1984).

There are many reasons for the undistinguished reputation of research in education,
only some of which are well-founded. Part of the cause can be found in the practical
orientation of teacher education. Schools of education generally do not prepare the nation's
future teachers to value disciplined inquiry or even, at 2 more mundane level, to keep track
of relevant research. Once on the job. the conditions of work do not encourage school
teachers to study the research literature. No matter how enlightening research may be, it
cannot concribute to improvements in education if it is not understood, used intelligently. and
refined in the context of local experience.

This situation is aggravated by the national terdency io want quick solutions to
problems--even if they have been generations in the making. Much of the public discussion
of education research has a distinctly utilitarian cast: it assumes that researchers conduct
studies, their findings are translated into products or programs for use in the schools, and
education is improved. This view is at once too narrow and too grandiose. It implies that
the only valuable research is research that can be directly translated into classroom practice.
a view that gives short shrift to much research. And it encourages unrealistic expectations

about what research can--or should be able to--accomplish.
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The effects of research on educational practice are seldom straightforward and quick.
As in other fields, there are few definitive studies, but rather a gradual accretion of
knowledge drawn from overlapping studies in many fields of study, conducted cver a long
period of time, punctuated by an occasional breakthrough. In physics and chemistry, as well
as social and behavioral science, decades of basic research provide the seedbed for new
approaches and methods. Improvement in education will occur onty if al} participants--
parents, students, teachers, the public, and policy makers--are willing to make strong
intellectual commitments to work together using new insights, approaches, and techniques to
improve education.

Although the undistinguished reputation of education research may be partly
attributable to some of the work, the NRC committee did not share the widespread negative
judgments about the contributions of research to the reform of education. [ts review of
research-based programs to improve teaching, strengthen curricula, restructure institutions of
learning, and assess and monitor the progress in U.S. schools led to the conclusion that
research can improve education--that research has been demonstrably useful.

Basic research and theory building in cognitive science, for example, have produced
important insights into how children acquire knowledge and make sense of new experience.
Many of the present generation of cognitive scientists are now taking these insigais into
applied settings--that is. classrooms--to develop teaching strategies that encourage children to
develop progressively more effective thinking strategies.

In a very different vein, the data collected by the OERI National Center for Education

Stauistics provide crucial information to federal, state, and local pelicy makers, social
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scientists, education associations, and others about the character, status, and problems of the
education system. The National Assessment of Educational Progress, for example, is an
important source of information about students’ knowledge and how their knowledge has
changed over time. Trend data indicate that reading and mathematics skills have increased
only slightly over the past two decades (National Center for Education Statistics, 1991),
information that has helped fuel the desire for thoroughgoing reform. One of the lesser
known trends apparent in these data is that the reading and mathematics scores of African
American and Hispanic students have been rising faster that the national average, which
many analysts interpret to mean that the basic skills movement, for all its limitations, had
some positive effects.

If, as the NRC committee argues, a sustained investment in research is an essential
ingredient in the overall effort to improve education, what can OERI, which is after all a
very small player in a very big enterprise, do to strengthen the effectiveness of education
research? Furst, successful education research tends to require a sustained investment of time
and money. (Should we be surprised at this if the seedless watermelon took 40 years to
develop?) Second, we can only benefit from innovation if we can distinguish worthwhile
programs from fads. An imporiant shortcoming of almost all federally funded (and other)
education research is the lack of money and time allotted to evaluation. Third, even its bnef
review of research quickly convinced the committeg that no one mechanism and no one
discipline should be given priority 1n federal funding. Although OERI funds virtually no
field-initiated research, inost of the innovative programs reviewed were built on a research

base supplied by the works of individual social and behavioral scientists, A vigorous
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program of support for field-initiated research is as important as the current support of
laboratories and centers. Moreover, advances in education have been built on research in the
cognitive sciences, psychology, sociology, antnropology, organizational benavior, and
clinical work. Education research will be substantially strengthened to the extent that it
embraces a broad array of disciplines and fields of study.

All of these recommendations-~support of long-term research efforts, serious
evaluation, much greater support of individual scholars and from many disciplines--suggest
bigger dollar outlay, and indeed, the NRC committee strongly recommends a large increase
in OERI's research budget. But that sort of financial commitment on the part of Congress is
only likely if OERI can be strengthened. The next section of this essay briefly describes
OERI's checkered institutional past before discussing some structural changes that the NRC

committee recommended to lend it greater independence and strength.

APPRAISAL OF OERI
Governance
The National Institute of Education was created in 1971 as a separate agency within
the Department of Health, Education and Welfare (HEW), to consolidate education research
and development activities, give responsibility for management of these activities to
professional scholars, and to provide higher status for the work. [is director reported to the
Assistant Secretary for Education, who was also in charge of the Office of Education and.

starting in 1974, the newly established National Center for Education Statistics (NCES).
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A National Council on Educational Research was created by legislation to set cverall
policies for NIE. The 15 members were appointed by the President and, in the 1976
reauthorization of NIE, Congress specified that the council was to be broadly representative
of the general public, of the education professions, and of the various fields of education.

With the creation of the Department of Education in 1979, the Office of Educational
Research and Improvement (OERI) was established. It was conceived as an umbrella
organization to house a semi-autonomous NIE, NCES, Library Programs, and some
discretionary and dissemination activities. The National Council of Educational Research
was retained.

During the 1980s OERI was reorganized and NIE eliminated. The policy-making
council was replaced with a National Advisory Council on Educational Research and
Impiovement. The responsibilities of the new council were somewhat more limited, since it
was not given authority to prescribe the duties of the head of OERI, and it was to provide
advice to the Secretary of Education and to the Assistant Secretary of OERI, rather than
determine policy.

It is not clear which governance structure--the policy-making council of NIE or the

advisory council of OERI--has been most effective. There is widespread agreement that the

advisory council has not been influential within OERI or outside of it. The policy-making

council. under both Republican and Democratic administrations in the 1970s. was generally
considered competent and hardworking, but it was unable to help NIE gain the support of
educators, the public, or Congress. In the early 1980s it was considered less distinguished,

more politicized, and even less effective in securing support.
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Another key issue in the govemnance of OERI has been the roles played by the top
administraters. Each new director or assistant secretary of OERI (and NIE) has sought to
make his or her mark by pursuing a distinctive agenda, but most have not remained long
enough to enact more than a small portion of it. Seven of the ten former top administrators
of OERI and NIE have held their positions for less than 2 years.

However, even with their short tenures, most of the directors and assistant secret, ries

have reorganized the agency. It is not :lear whether the reorganizations have been due to a

persisting behef that there are structural solutions to the problems of federal support of

educational research or to the lack of opportunities for discretion in other areas of managing

the agency.

Politicization

The National Institute of Education was born in the midst of political maneuvenng. It
was proposed by President Nixon, a Republican, at a time when he was simultaneously
proposing cuts in federal funding for many social and education programs to a
Democratically controlled Congress (Sproull ct al., 1978). Political conservatives, wanting
to limit federal involvement in the nation's life, were generally against the institute. So were
many liberals, who were unwilling to trade federal support of local school programs for
education research. Senator Warren Magnuson, a powerful member of the Senate
Appropriations Committee and chair of the subcommittee responsible for HEW, was angered

by Nixon's proposals to cut $3 billion from that department and sought to extract revenge

through NIE.
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Ever since, there has been a widespread perception that NIE and OEK! have been
inappropriately and dysfunctionally politicized. The examples of politicization, however,
vary markedly depending on who is citing them. Members of Congress and their staffs
frequently charge that the administration’s ideological and political agendas have skewed the

. appointment of top administrators, the selection of topics to be studied, the determination of
how the topics are to be studied, the awarding of contracts, and the editing of reports and
timing of their release. For instance, it is claimed that there was little research on the
educational effects of dual-earner families during the Carter administration (for fear that the
results might impair the women’s employment opportunities, which were supported by taat
administration) and little research on women's equity issues during the Reagan administration
(because excellence, rather than equity, was that administration’s focus). In turn, members
of the administration frequently charge that Congress has politicized the research by favoring
constituency desires rather than substantive merit, by large set-asides for the taboratories and
centers, by mandating specific centers and studies, by limiting the focus of some

congressionally-mandated studies (such as the lack of examination of studen" achievement in

the 1980s Chapter I study), by pushing other pet projects with threats against OERI's
appropriations, and by making "big cases” over trivial complaints from constituents.

Some researchers complain that those who hold views unpopular with the members of
proposal review panels are precluded from funding, and that various interest groups have
distorted OERI's agenda. Organizations of professional educators frequently complain that

OERI (and NIE) has been the pawn of the researchers and ignored the needs of practitioners.

16
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Education writers complain of political coloring of research reports, especially those on

issues of major concern to the administration.

Thus, for almost three decades, charges of politicization have swirled around NIE and

OERI. Many people view the agency as politicized, and that perception inevitably affects the

credibility of its work. The civersity of the allegations, however, does suggest that these
charges are partly a function of the dissension that often accompanies education. Over and

over again, what one group views as leadership, other groups view as politicization.

Sustained Efforts
The Office of Technology Assessment’s recent report (1988) on R&D for
technological applications for education provides a good discussion of the importance of

sustained efforts in R&D work:

The Department of Education has had an off and on love affair with
technology. Where research support has been consistent, as in support of
children’s television programming in the late 1960s through the 1970s, or long
term as in support for technology in special education, important milestones
were reached. These are exceptions. Most research projects did not have
Opportunities to proceed from laboratory research through to development of
products and processes, much less to testing in the classroom, with real
students and teachers,

In the 1970s, the Department supported quite a few projects lasting 5§
Or more years . . . During the 1980s few projects received comparable long-
term support.

... [rhe 1987-88 plans} fall short of focused, long-term commitments
called for by the National Governors’ Association, the National Task Force on
Educational Technology, and the National School Boards Association . . .
Significant improvements in education can be made if sustained support is
made availzble for development of new tools for teaching and learning. The
private sector, while a contributor to this effort, does not have the primary
responsibility or appropriate vision for making this a priority. States and
localities do not have the capacity.

ERIC
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Instability often results in mediocrity. Most of the research-based innovations that are
currently available to educators provide only modest improvements, partly because of the
complexity of human leaming and behavior, but also partly because these innovations are
seldom subject to successive iterations of research, development, and evaluation aimed at
strengthening effects, ensuring effectiveness in a wide range of settings, enhancing market
appeal, and minimizing costs. Funding for such work is rarely available, and universities
often do not consider the second and subsequent iterations to be scholarly work.

As the nation moves from innovation to comprehensive reform, the need for sustained
efforts becomes even more important. As Elmore and McLaughlin (1988) have observed:

Reform of the basic conditions of teaching and learning in schools requires

“steady work". . . . Lags in implementation and performance are a central

fact of reform . . . the time it takes for reforms to mature into changes in

resource allocation, organization, and practice is substantially longer than the
electoral cycles [four years) that determine changes in policy.

Balanced Portfolio

OERI supports many kinds of education R&D activities. Each makes different
contributions, and a mix of them is necessary to fulfill its mandate.

Two critical types of R&D activity have been severely underfunded at OERI. First,
the agency invests very little in field-initiated research--research whose topics and methods
are suggested by scholars around the country, rather than in esponse to requesis by an
agency for specific work. Field-initiated research harvests the insight, creativity, and

initiative of researchers widely dispersed across the country, and has been a major

contributor to knowledge and technology in all fields of science. NIH invests 56 percent of
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its R&D budget in field-initiated ressarch and NSF devotes 94 percent but, in 1992, OERI
invested only 2 percent of its R&D budget for this purpose. It seems to have been
congressional action that has constrained field-initiated research at OER] by imposing set-
asides on virtually all of the agency’s primary appropriations ang specifying very low levels
of support for this work.

The second underfunded critical type of R&D activity is basic research. Basic
research in education is aimed at expanding understanding of the fundamental aspects of
human development, leaming, teaching, schools, and their environmental contexts; such
research generates new views of what exists and new visions of the achievable. While
federal government overall, excluding the Department of Defense, invests about 40 percent
of its R&D budget in basic research, in 1989 only 5.5 percent of OERI's R&D budget was
allocated for this purpose.

In 1977 a National Research Council report, Fundamental Research and the Process

of Education, recommended that the federal government “increase . . . the proportion of the
federal investment in education research and development designated for fundamental
research” and that NIE "take immediate steps to implement a policy of strong support for

fundamentai research relevant to education.” Suppor: for basic research at NIE increased

substaniially for a few years after the report’s publication (Timpane, 1982). During the early

years of the 1980s, the entire Department of Education invested about 11 percent of its R&D
budget on basic research; since 1986 it has spent only about 2 percent (National Science

Foundation, 1991).
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Basic research has been slighted at QERI primarily because Congress, teachers,

administrators, and the administration have repeatedly urged that the agency quickly solve the

pressing problems in schools. Since basic research seldom yields pracucal applications in

less than a decade, the agency has responded to demands for solutions by focusing on applied

research, development, and dissemination activities Although this is an understandable
response, it ignores the fact that several of today's most promising innovations in education
have been heavily influznced by findings from basic research in cognitive science--work that

was conducted not only by education researchers but by investigators in several of the

behavioral and social sciences.

Funding
NIE was established to enhance the federai rele in education R&D, yet within a year
its budget began spiraling downward. That trend continued when NIE's functions were
assumed by OERI, reaching a low point in 1983. This downhill slide inevitably extracted a
heavy toll on the agency. Careful agenda setting became futiie: "quick fixes" replaced
thoughtful investments: and few sustained rescarch and development activities could be
maintained. Resources were spread so thinly that mediocnty was virtually assured.
Indiv:dual researchers, with less pohiuical cleut than institutions, were squeezed out. Agency
staff focused on required admunistrative funct:ons and survival strategies rather than fulfilling
the agency’s substantive mission. Top-tlight personinel often shunned working in the agency.
Researchers, watching resources for field-initiated work dwindle, blamed the loss on

the set-asides of funds for the lahoratories and centers, which have taken up increasingly

74-81% O - ¥3 - 3 R 33 o
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large percentages of the budgets. Some observers suggest a quite different view: that the

centers and laboratories, especially the latter with clients spread across the country, have

provided most of the constituent support for NIE and OERI, and without their efforts, the

agencies would have disappeared.

The centers and laboratories, however, have also suffered from the decliring budgets:

in 1973 NIE provided $80 million for their operations (in 1990 constant dollars); by 1979
that had declined to $52 million; and in 1991 the amount was $47 million. For individual
laboratories anc centers, the effect has been more dramatic because there are now twice as
many of them as there were in 1973.

The budget cutting has also been reflected in congressionally requested studies. For
instance, in the mid-1970s Congress directed NIE to conduct a nationwide study of the
administration and effectiveness of compensatory education. The equivalent of $34 million
(in 1990 dollars) was appropriated for the 3.5-year study. In 1990 Congress directed OERI
to conduct a nationwide study of school reform efforts--a much broader topic--but just $9
million was made available for the 3.5-year study.

These budget cuts have had a marked effect on the work and products of OERI. A
U.S. General Accounting Office report (1987:2) that reviewed the work of NIE, NCES, and
the department’s Office of Policy. Budget, and Evaluation concluded:

During the past decade, the production of federally sponsored research, statistical. and

evaluative information on ecucation has declined notably . . . so much so that the

availability of up-to-date information to disseminate to teachers and other practitioners
may be threatened.
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PLAN FOR A MORE EFFECTIVE OERI

At the outset, it is important to recognize that much that needs to be done about U.S.
education is beyond the responsibilities and authority of OERI. OERI's mission is to expand
understanding and assist in the improvement of education. It has no authority over teacher
education institutions, state education agencies, school boards, district administrators,
principals, teachers, or parents. The agency also is tightly constrained in the extent to which
it can promote or induce change. The role of OERI (and its predecessor, the National
Institute of Education [NTE]} has always been limited to generating new knowiedge,
deveioping new techniques and approaches. disseminating information about both, and
assisting interested parties to apply the education research and development.

In addition, the mission of OERI is inherently difficult. The disagreements and
conflicts over education are endless. Probing the mysteries of human learning is not easy.
Linking research with practice remains a challenge. And improving schools is always
difficult.

But OERI is also faced with many problems that are not inherent in its mission or
responsibilities. If these problems are eliminated or reduced. the agency could be more
effective. Frequent changes in leadership have caused organizational instability. false starts
abandoned efforts, and unfuifilled agendas. Having the head of any research agency serve at
the will of a high political appointee creates the appearance, if not the reality of
politicization. So does requiring a research agency to submit its reports for clearance by a
politically controlled public affairs office. Congressional actions have also weakened QERI.

In addition to substantial budget cuts through most of the 1980s, set-asides in the




appropriations have almost eliminated field-initiated researcii, and mandated studies have
occasionally been politically skewed.

Fragmentation within OERI, and between 1t and other federal agencies. nas resulted in
agenda setting with little benefit from what the others hasve learmed and accomglished. The
paucity of sustained research has often limited the zdvance of understanding. The paucity of
sustained development efforts has resulted in many innovatons that are less effective and
more expensive than necessary. Inadequate mechanisms for quality contral and accumulatos
of results have forced pracutioners and policy makers to wade through farge ieratures with
little guidance as to what is valid, important, and widcly apphicable. Weak finks with
teachers, administrators. and policy makers have often hmuted resexrchers’ knowledge anout
the realities of schools and public policy making and dented pract:ioners the benefits of
R&D. Inadequate funding has contributed to mest of these problems and undermined
OERI's capacity 1o deal effectively with them.

When Congress passes legisiation to reauthonze OERI :n 1993, we recommend a
number of changes 1n ieadership structure and in the mechanim ror seiing research

pnonties:

1) OERI should have a director appoinied hy the Presicent. in consuitation with the
agency’s board and with the advice and consent of the Senate, tor a 6-vear renewable term

The rapid tumover at OERI has been dystunctional 10 an ageiwy that needs sustaned

leadership in planning for, nvesting in, and supporung the long-term erorts that are required

for major scienuific and technoiogical advances.
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There are several precedents for 4- or 6-year terms of office in federal research
agencies. These arrangements have been instituted to ensure sustained professional
managerent and to minimize the opportunities for politicization. Although they cannot
cnsure either--appointees are siill free to quit and both the President and Congress retain
discretion over agency budgets--a fixed term would allow the growth of a spurit of

independence and professionalism in OERI.

2) OERI’s agenda setting should be guided by a 24-member policy-making board.
At least one-third of the membership should be distinguished researchers who have done
work on educauon 1ssues, complemented by a balanced representauon of practihoners.
parents, employers, policy makers, arnd others who have made noteworthy contnbutions to
excellence in education.

With OERI’s history of controversy .onstant charges of politicization, and
fragmentation, bnnging focus and siabihity 1o the agency 15 a bigger job than any one person
1s ikely to marage. The board we propose 15 modeled closely on the Nanonal Science Board
of the National Science Foundation. Most obserers believe that this board has served s
agency well. It would differ significantly from the boards of NIE. It would be larger and
more diverse, helping to ensure that its members understand the views of the major groups
concerned with education. It would be hmited to people who have already proven their
ability to migke wmportant contributions 10 research on education or to excellence in
education. thus ensunng competence and some common understandings during 1ts

deliberations.  In addition, the beard would not set OERI's agenda on the basis of 1ts
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members' own predilections, but rather would distill priorities from the needs and

capabilities of the country after wide consultation with those concerned about education.

3) The OERI board should establish a precess to develop priorities for OERI's
agenda. The process should involve active participation of the various groups concerned
with education. These priorities should be set so as to maintain the continuity, stability, and
flexibility needed to conduct high-quality research and to effect educational change.

OERI is currently required to publish proposed research priorities in the Federal
Register every 2 years, resulting in the establishment of a new set of priorities. We propose
long-term plans with a limited biennial update.

In addition, OERI's research agenda must reflect the priority needs of researchers,
teachers, administrators, parents, students, employers and policy makers, and the agenda-
setting process must reflect the capabilities of the education R&D enterprise. Unrealistic
objectives of quick fixes to complex problems or universal solutions to problems with
multiple causes serve only to disappoint researchers and potential users of their work.
Without the integration of needs and capabilities, the productivity, effectiveness, and

applicability of the education R&D will suffer.

4) OERI should support a balanced portfolio of activities: basic research, applied

research, statistics, development, evaluation, dissemination, and technical assistance; field-

initiated and institutionally based R&D; and long-term sustained efforts and responses to
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newly identified needs and opportunities. To do so, OERI must substantially expand support
for basic research, field-initiated research, and sustained R&D activities.

With an eye to leveraging the influence of the federal government in supporting
widespread school reform, we made a large number of recommendations for recrganizing
OERI, including the creation of a Reform Assistance Directorate, which would be the link
between research and state and local reform efforts. More important, perhaps, than the
specific design details, is the spirit that informed our thinking.

The report calls upon OERI to provide leadership in developing learning
communities. OERI should work with state agencies, local districts, teacher education
institutions, and researchers to help practitioners and researchers create leaming
communities. Bacad on our collective knowledge and experience, the committee became
convinced that widespread school reform will require partnerships between researchers and
practitioners. Each has much to contribute. Researchers can provide breadth and depth of
1nquiry and rigor of investigation; they can elaborate new theories, conduct carefully
controlled experiments. study programs and practices in multiple sites. and prepare national

indicators of educational progress. Practitioners have an intimate and holistic understanding

of the realities of schooling: they accumulate craft wisdom from daily experiences. Among

their ranks are exemplars of good practice and effectiveness wnose “magic” needs to be
understood and conveyed to others. Practitioners are also the ultimate implementers of most
reform strategies.

OERJ could encourage such partnerships in several ways. It could fund new

approaches to conveying each group's needs tc the other it could support development of
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ways (o better share the expertise of each group with the other.

And it couid support

innovative collaborations where each group works with the other on their respective

responsibilities.

OERL's efforts will have to be supported with leadership at the national, state. and

local levels. For instance, school districts wili have to provide release-ume for teachers;

teacher education institutions will have to expenment with substaniial changes in their

programs; and policy makers and researchers will haye to take the ume 1o listen and

communicate with practiiivniers much more effecusely than they have in the past.

5} With regard 10 funding. a substantial 1ncrease in the budget and siaffing of OFRI

1S required if 1t 15 to play ar important rale in the aaton with etfective education reform.

The NAS report recommends increases in OERI's budget for more basic and applied

research. more research based Jey elopment, lzboratory staff with state liaison

responsibihities, a minonty fellowship program, more extensive refinement and evaluation of

PromisIng nnovations, and consensus conferences to reach findirgs about imporant and

coniested bodies of research and evaivaton. It th.at increase 15 rot iorthcoming, the mission

and activities of the agency should be sigruficantiy narrowed.

The committee recogrizes that its funding recommendation; would requirc a large

cxpenditure  Some people will stmply cismiss 1t as oo expersive. We see 1t as a cnucal

investment in the nation's future. Without the nvestmert. and cencornitant efiorts at state

and local levels. the country is not likehy to come close 1o meeting the national educanon

goals.
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Over the first 6 years, our recommendations will cost the nation approximately $1.3
billion in additional expenditures. Over the same period, the nation will spend about $1,500
billion on elementary and secondary education in this country. It s clear that this added
investment in R&D will be paid back many times over if it improves the effectiveness or
efficiency of our education system by even 1 percent. It aiso should be noted that even with
full implementation of all our recommendations, federal investment in education R&D will
still be significantly less than federal R&D investment in agriculture, transportation, or

health.
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Chairman OweNs. Thank you.

Mr. Ballenger, would vou care to continue?

Mr. BALLENGER. Sure. Thank vou. Mr. Chairman,

Mr. Ball, first, if I might. I don't know if the statistics you pre-
sented regarding the expenditures on educational research would
compare to a local school system in Gastonia, North Carolina, that
won an award for America 2000 because of its Odyssey Program.
but I am sure there was a substantial amount of research and de-
velopment that was created there. But at the same time, with the
assistance of Northern Telecom and also Bell South and the fiber-
optics industry was able to connect three colleges and two junior
high schools, and three high schools to teach various classes. I saw
it operate, and it was unbelievably fabulous.

I'am a bucinessman, and I love to see strange things put together
that way.

How much—this is a pure question, and you may not have the
answer—how much private money goes into the development of
education? You as a businessman. I as a businessman, recognize
that if our children aren't better educated than they are at the
present time, we are not going to be able to compete in the world
market, because not only our everyday workers, but the ones that
are moving up the ladder won’t have the capacity that is necessary
to deal with the world the way it is today.

That is kind of a broad question, but 1 wondered if you had any
idea about input from the private sector.

Now, I realize Northern Telecom and Bell South were both ap-
proaching this from the viewpoint that somewhere down the road
they were going to make some money out of this thing, developing
a program that would be usable everywhere.

Mr. BaLL. Congressman Ballenger, I see a major role for the pri-
vate sector in education research and in the development of the
progran. Certainly, it obtains, in spades, with respect to technolo-
gy, what you have described with Northern Telecom. Research is a
very many-splendored thing in this sense, and you hit upon one
area. This looms very large in the future of the design of our edu-
cational system, and I am sure that it will be approached not only
by firms like you have mentioned, the Whittle people are coming
on strong with respect to technology of that sort. I would like to
say that there is a whole lot to research in education apart from
technology in these dazzling new ways in which we can communi-
cate and work.

It is a very broad field, requiring inputs both public and private,
and it is really the public section that we are addressing in our rec-
ommendations and that I think would fit very effectively with the
private programs that vou described.

Mr. BALLENGER. Dr. Porter, 1 saw you write some notes. Would
you like to speak to that?

Mr. PorTeR. Thank you very much. 1 think with an increased
Federal investment in education rescarch, you could expect that to
have a positive influence on the amount of private sector invest-
ment, too. If vou just look at the biotech industry, around the Uni-
versity of Wisconsin-Madison these private firms are springing up
and feeding off the university's research buse. Most of that is sup-
ported out of the National Seience Foundation.
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But right now I think the business of education operates pretty
much orthogonal or separate from the research base, because there
has just been so little Federal leadership in that regard. So I see it
as an opportunity. I think if your bill and the increased appropria-
tions that you are suggesting in your reauthorization were to come
about, you would see u very positive leveraging effect upon invest-
ment from the private sector.

Mr. BaLLENGER. I would like to ask you, since you are connected
to the University in Wisconsin and obviously you have used re-
search ideas on new ways to teach and so forth and so on, have you
found—in breaking into the structure that we have had there year
after year after year after year where large numbers of people
don't want to change—that it is difficult to get changes where
something has been the same way forever.

Mr. PorTer. Well, absolutely. Change in education is extremely
difficult. I can give you one example where we have had tremen-
dous success. I think it is a nice example of the kind of sustained
investment that vou are calling for in your bill in education re-
search and then into development.

Professors Elizabeth Bennamin and Tom Carpenter at the Uni-
versity of Wisconsin-Madison have developed a program called Cog-
nitively Guided Instruction, a mathematics program in elementary
school. It draws on basic cognitive science research. It works with
teachers, not to tell them w »t to do, but to give them broad prin-
ciples within which to oper..e in terms of improving their instruc-
tion and interactions with students.

One of the early users of that program, Maysa Jenkins, received
the President’s Award as the Distinguished Teacher of the Year
based largely for her work in CGI instruction. We find teachers
very, very receptive to that. In fact, it is now in the District of Co-
lumbia i six pilot schools and they want to go districtwide with it.
So if you get something and it appeals to teachers and it holds high
promise of improving learning, I think we can be pretty optimistic.

Mr. BALLENGER. Let me just say the two of you express it very
well. The Gaston County School District won a $20 million award
from the New American School Development Corporaticn and un-
fortunately, the selling of the program was done by an egghead ed-
ucator that spoke in a language that was not understood by the
majority of people in Gaston County. We had almost a revolution
from the Christian Right, saying that the devil is coming in here
and God is going to strike us all dead.

I do recommend that educators learn to speak English that the
common people understand, so that they understand that educators
are not just trying to destroy the world. But the Odyssey program
was beautiful. The Christian Right is supposed to be on my side,
but the newspaper had to ask me to write a letter down there to
try to explain to them that we weren't really bringing the devil
into the school: that we were really trying to upgrade education,
And I did speak to the superintendent of schools and he apologized
for the fellow he had put in charge of selling this thing to the
people back home.

So one of the things 1 think we all have to recognize is that great
ideas in education have to be put out in simple terms, because it is
not the teachers, necessarily, that are going to fight you to the
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death, but the PTA, or the people not represented by the PTA, but
have their kids in the school.

OERI has a wonderful future, I think, and if we do the proper
thing with it and come up with great ideas, we will have simple
salesmen. You know as well as I do, in business if you don't talk
the language of your customer, you aren’t going anywhere. So I
would just like to say that I think it is great.

I really am kind of glad that the Clinton administration didn't
use exactly the same number and it is still 2000, the idea of devel-
oping new education in the year 2000, and I sadly understand that
the funding, the private funding that was supposed to build there
under the Bush administration, may be drying up; but I hope the
Clinton administration will pick up on that.

I will be glad to jump on board and help on it because I really
think that anything we can do to take the new ideas that we have
in business every day and put them into the educational system is
something we can do for the future of our country. That is prob-
ably one of the most important things we can do.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Owens. Thank you. The gentleman has pointed out
something very important; we would certainly be altering our legis-
lation to remove the terms “America 2000” and “Goals 2000,” but
the term “2000” would still be there. It is indicative of the biparti-
san consensus that is developing around education. We would cer-
tainly like to encourage a bipartisan approach from here on out,
too.

Mr. Ball, you had another comment.

Mr. BALL. Just to pick up on a point that Representative Bal-
lenger spoke about. I talked with Deborah Myer. In a conversation,
she expressed a regret about what she called the faddishness of
education reforms and new ideas that come along, sort of the
“reform of the month.” She expressed a feeling that she was
pleased that education is essentially a conservative function and
that we don't get carried away with even more of those fads and
that tendency.

That heightened in my mind the notion that we have to deal
with a tension between the new and novel and the need to main-
tain a continuity in the programs. Again, it makes a very strong
case for more and better research to cater to the need yet under-
stand the new techniques as they come along.

Chairman Owens. I want to thank both of you gentlemen for
giving us insight into the works of the Academy ‘as it developed the
report, which we still consider very important in terms of under-
girding our basic approach to research and development. Mr. Ball,
your confessions on the internal workings of the committee re-
minded me of the disclosure of Thurgood Marshall's papers about
the internal workings of the Supreme Court and how its delibera-
tions took place. I was reminded of that when you started talking
about some of the things the committee did and how you had to
fight to keep it from getting sidetracked by other issues. We take
that as a sign of the passion that was related to this endeavor.

You both seem to worry a great deal about the possibility of the
proposed board drifting into micromanagement. In your delibera-
tions, did you take a look at the board we proposed for OERI as
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compared to the NSF board? I think the person who was directing
the study, Mr. Atchison, was a former director of NSF. How do we
compare? Is it an inapt comparison that should not be made?

Mr. PorTer. Well, I think there are many similarities. Your rec-
ommendation is to have a large and representative board with lots
of different points of view. NSF is the same way. You have recom-
mended that the members be distinguished themselves: that they
have a record of having made important contributions themselves
to the enterprise, either to education practice or to research. That
is similar to NSF as well. The idea is that it is a policy board
rather than an advisory board. That is similar as well.

The recommendations we made in our report for a policy board
really drew very heavily upon Dick Atchinson’s experiences as Di-
rector of NSF. But there is this line between policy on the one
hand and management on the other and it is difficult to know
where to strike that balance. And——

Chairman OweNs. We concluded that the NSF had substantially
more powers than the board we proposed.

Mr. PorTER. Pardon me?

Chairman OweNs. We concluded that the NSF had substantially
more powers than the board that we proposed.

Mr. PortER. You did?

Chairman OwWENSs. Yes.

Mr. PORTER. Well—

Mr. BALLENGER. Not all of us.

Mr. PorTer. Well, I must split the difference, then.

Again, I guess I could single out the areas where I think the bill
comes closest to opening the door to stepping over that distinction
between providing important policy direction on the one hand and
micromanagement on the other. I think in the place where you
start talking about things like setting objectives for the Agency,
when you get down to that level, depending upon the individuals,
this could be a problem.

There is another place where it is just a little bit confusing as to
whether you are getting into micromanagement. For example, you
say, well, that the various directors of the research institutes
should be nominated by the board which makes a lot of sense.
What isn’t clear from your language is whether that would be the
sole source of nominations. I would hope and assume that it would
not be. Also, you don't address in your bill whether the assistant
secretary would still be the so-called “selecting official,” and I am
assuming and hoping that he/she would be. But the language, be-
cause it mentions only nominations from the board—and presum-
ably nominations would be open from any source, but it singles out
the board—has that flavor of micromanagement, at points.

Chairman Owens. Thank you very much. We will make some
clarifications in those cases.

There have been arguments made that the bill's recommendation
for the establishment of several new institutes means creating new
lavers of bureaucracy at a time when we are trying to reduce the
size of Federal bureaucracy. We saw them as absolutely necessary.
Compared to other endeavors like Commerce, Agriculture, and De-
fense, we are way behind in terms of the necessary structures to
deal with research as it should be handled.

47
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-We.also wanted to protect the educational research enterprise
from™political interference, and we think institutes go a long way
toward doing that. Would you care to comment on how the Nation-
al Institutes of Health or other similar bodies have managed to
seal themselves off from intensive political interference and how
we might do that against the structure?

Mr. PorTER. Well. as you know, our committee's thinking and
your bill are in complete agreement on this need to organize OERI
around research institutes. We happened to call them R&D direc-
torates, but the name is the only difference. Now, whether that
would be an additional layer of bureaucracy, it certainly wasn't our
thinking that it would be, in that those directorates would replace
the current organizational structure of OERI: so. it would be a re-
placement, not an additional one.

How the National Institutes of Health protect themselves from
politicization is a good question. I think health is a different matter
from education. I think evervbody considers himself ar expert on
education, but I don’t think everybody considers himself a chemist
or a biologist or a medical doctor.

The other difference may be in size. OERI has been so tiny that
if it is to get any attention it would have to be political attention.
There is not enough money there to really get any kind of other
ﬁt]tention, You seem to have addressed both of those issues in your

ill.

Chairman Owens. Mr. Ball.

Mr. BarL. I would like to support that notion. I think there is a
critical mass issue involved here that you can't really break some-
thing into separate parts, into institutes or whatever, unless you
have enough to deal with. I don't totally understand the National
Institutes of Health organization. but it seems to me to be a mar-
velous model for us to follow here, because we do have the divisible
parts of the education scene—the problems of minorities. the gov-
ernance issues, the finance issues—which lend themselves admira-
bly to that kind of division.

We did not undertake to suggest what these institutes might he
in our proposal, but we were quite convinced that it would be «
very legitimate way to divide up the effort.

I think one way to get it depoliticized would be the length of the
terms of the leadership; of course, that can cut both ways, but I
think it is a possible way of providing continuity of the program.

Chairman OwEeNS. You mentioned the need for OERI to develop
learning communities, and you believe that widespread school
reform will require partnerships between researchers and practi-
tioners. Our second panel today will highlight the Michigan Part-
nership for New Education. Do you know much about this partner-
ship or similar partnerships? Would you care to comment on what
kind of model that might be or what other models you had in mind
when you mentioned learning communities?

Mr. Porter. Judy Lanier and 1 were together for vears at the
College of Education, Michigan State University. While T was still
there, tae heginning ideas of the partnership were heing developed
by Judv. so I am somewhat familiar with it.

What T am very familiar with is an 'dea that ran in front of that
developiment which Judy Lanier also pioneered. and which |
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became a big supporter and champion of. That is the concept of
teacher collaborators in a research institute. At the time we had
the Research Institute on Teaching at Michignn State University
which Judy Lanier and lee Coleman co-directed. They were
brought into the Institute-—released half-time from their duties to
collaborate on research projects—and stayed for an extended
period of time, approximately 3 years.

That is a very, very valuable way to conncet research and prac-
tice. It brings the practitioner right to the research enterprise, so
the nature of the questions being formulated reflect practice. It
does something on a small scale like what you are talking about in
your bill in creating teacher agents. which I think is the real way
to communicate research, through the practitioners, the teachers
themselves.

But I don't think you get good communication unless you are in
collaboration at the point of research. So [ think this is a very good
idea. I am not absolutely current on the Michigan Partnership. I
am sure you are going to hear all about that a little bit later, but
the idea of practitioners and researchers collaborating at the rime
that research and development is done is excellent.

Chairman OwgeNs. Mr. Ball?

Mr. BatL. No comment on that.

Well. just one thing. 1 do regret the tendency oun the part of
policy groups and. deliberative groups on these education problems
to virtually ignore the role of the teachers and lower level adminis-
trators. It seems to me that they have in their grasp a lot of the
answers to our problems, if we would just listen to them and recog-
nize how deeply grounded they are in the realities of the work-
place, of the classroom.

Chairman Owens. One last question, Mr. Ball. You talked about
the international global market; how in the arena of competition,
you wouldn't exist very long if you didn't have a very well-org..-
nized and funded research and development operation. We are get-
ting a number of comments from various people about the fact that
very little is spent on research and development in this by ow
global competitors. The Japanese don't spend very much for re-
search and development for education and the British don’t and
the Germans don't. Do you have any comment?

Mr. BaLL. I have wondered about that, and I have thought about
what one can say about it. I guess the bottom line of my thinking
1s, we need to play catch-up. Somehow we have let things drift oft
target in the last few years. Someone mentioned international test
comparisons; the one that sticks in my mind is that only the top 5
percent of the math achievers in our secondary schools are in the
top »0 percent of the Japanese.

If we go head to head with the dJupanese. and if their companies
are supplied with students who are obviously far more qualified
than ours. how are we going to compete? That is a question you
have got to face up (o,

So 1 think that we simply have a lot of work to do to pet onr
education establishment up and running. 1 think research is one of
the wavs we can do that.
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We have a lot of other things that have to be done as well—fi-
nancing, for example. But we have to research, because that is the
best way that is available to us. That's my opinion.

Chairman Owens. Do you have a comment, Dr. Porter?

Mr. PorTER. I guess my first thought is that it is a good thing
that they aren’t investing more in education research or we would
be further behind. Sandy Wigmore just whispered in my ear that
they draw pretty heavily on the work that is published in our jour-
nals, not only in education, but in a lot of other fields.

Chairman OwEeNs. As they did in industry.

Mr. PorTER. So once again we are coming up with the ideas, and
they are doing the manufacturing.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Mr. Scott.

Mr. Scorr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | just have a couple of
questions. :

Mr. Ball, you indicated that the term of the research could orly
be 1& months. Did I understand that?

Mr. BaLL. That is the term of the——

Chairman Owens. Qur present law.

Mr. BaLL. [continuing] the field-initiated research programs as
they exist now.

Mr. Scotr. Would you suggest a longer term so that longitudinal
studies could be developed?

Mr. BacL. Yes, I would. There are some research projects which
can be accomplished quite rapidly: because of ‘heir very nature,
they involve specific limited goals. Others require great dedication
of resources over a long period of time.

I think I mentioned the last time I testified here that our indus-
try has been working on taking the seeds out of watermelons for 10
years. We just achieved it; a really remarkable technological
achievement that took 40 years to accomplish. I think you have to
took at a mix of short-term projects with long-term, coming all to-
gether, making it a totally effective program.

So, yes, indeed, we do need more than 18 months. I think that is
quite an unsatisfactory time.

Mr. BALLENGER. You are going to take some of the fun out of
eating watermelon.

Mr. BaLL. That is what my wife says, Congressman Ballenger.
She is a South Carolinian, and she says, why in the world would
you want to take those beautiful seeds out of the watermelon?

Mr. BALLENGER. You can always spit your distance.

Mr. BarL. We go ahead, undaunted. Incidentally, there is an in-
teresting point.

Mr. BALLENGER. | am sorry to interrupt.

Mr. BaLL. [continuing] research is serendipitous. I don't know if
you are familiar with the story of aspartame, which started out
being a cancer cure and ended up being a $300 million sweetener
story. That is also true of our watermelons. We wanted to take the
seeds out for esthetic reasons and being able to eat them more ef-
tectively—the northerners aren't quite like the southerners. What
we found out, however, is that the seeds exude ethylene gas and
hasten the destraction of the fruit. Now that we have taken the
seeds out, witermelons have a shelf life several weeks longer and
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can be shipped wider distances, which has improved their useful-
ness as a fruit.
. So I think we don't always recognize the potential for serendipi-
. tous things like that in all research, including education research.
Mr. Scort. Mr. Ball, I thought I heard you say something along
the lines that the committee wanted to do research on minorities,
N but were told they had to get back on their mission. Can you elabo-
rate on that?

Mr. BaLL. My view of it is that the basic thrust of the research
program should apply to all individuals, all youngsters coming
through the system, the whole of society; but that there are unique
problems and opportunities relating to minorities which can be
very effectively dealt with and exorcised in terms of a research pro-
. gram, and should be gathered together into one of the natural divi-
_ sions of the OERI program—one of the institutes—and dealt with

there. Also, cross-filing with other institutes, where it is appropri-
. ate, definitely has a place as a separate institute unit.
— Mr. Scorr. One of the concerns I have is the fact that our educa-
tional system just isn’t working for a lot of young people. There are
some things that help, some things that don't.

I was at an elementary school a couple of months ago that had a
special program that amounted to a cost of $150 extra per student.
They were able to increase their achievement level from the 20th
percentile to the 50th percentile with that extra little program.
There are a lot of other studies that have shown how you can clear-
ly change the odds significantly for at-risk groups.

What kind of research is going on to see what works and what
doesn’t work; how does that apply to this legislation? Should we
ask it of the next panel?

Mr. BaLL. Well, I think that the answer is, not a whole lot. Be-
cause you can't shoot a 20,000-ton cruiser with a handgun. And
that is what we are trying to do now. We don’t have the resources
to really do a job researching the problems of minorities and the
other areas whete research is needed.

I have an uncomfortable feeling that this situation is going to get
worse before it gets better. I got a certificate to teach as a substi-
tute teacher in the Chicago schools and other schools in Illinois,
and spent three weeks in the classroom last year, with mostly mi-
nority youngsters. In one school where I taught, there was 40 per-
cent Hispanic; in another there was 85 percent black.

So, I have seen it up close and it gets scary. I think the closer
you get to it, the more needy it looks, the more the need becomes |
apparent. I think we really have to deal with that with research. |
We have to get on with it.

Mr. PortERr. I would just add that in the research that OERI has
been funding there has been a high priority in the last 10 years on
investigating the quality of educatior. and how it can be improved
for schools serving high concentrations of poor children. I know, for
example, that the bulk of the research at my center—the OERI
math center—the cognitively guided instruction program is being
done in schools with high concentrations of minority students.

In the Center on School Organization and Restructuring, when
we select good examples of restructured schools to study to see
what makes them effective and how they have become that way,
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we also pick schools that are serving high concentrations of low-
income and minority youngsters. OERI, within its past work. has
said this is the place where we should concentrate our resources
because it is the place where there is the greatest need.

But that is not to disagree in any way with Carl's statement that
rescarch should be done that benefits all students; actually. what
vou find is that the work that benefits low-income students is work
that really benefits other students as well.

Mr. Scort. We have another panel. so I will make just one other
comment I think we are missing the mark in terms of delivering
education to a lot of students. There is no excuse that more at-risk
students end up in prison than in college. particularly when you
look at interventions that work. We need to do a better job in deliv-
ering education and research: and determining what works and
what doesn’t is very important.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Owens. I would like to close out by saying that we
value vour opinions quite highly. both as indivicuals and as col-
leagues at the Academy. We appreciate vour study. In fact. that
study confirms most of what we have asserted in our bill.

I would like for you to take another look at the issue of micro-
management and the powers of the board. I am going to have
vopies of this chart. “"How Other Research and Development Enti-
ties Make Funding Decisions.” delivered to both of you. The chart
compares OERI, as proposed in the legislation, with the National
Science Foundation, National Institutes of Health. and the New
American Schools and Development Corporation.

Let me just give yvou an example. Under the legislation that we
are proposing, before issuing an RFP or soliciting contract bids
which exceed $500,000 in any single fiscal year. the Secretary must
submit the proposal to the board for review.

Under National Science Foundation, all grants and all contracts
which exceed $500.,000 in a single year or a total of $6 million over-
all must be approved by the 21-member National Science Board.
The Ilational Institutes of Health's advisory council must approve
all contracts and grants which exceed £30,000.

We would like for you to review this in light of vour previous
comments. We would like vou to submit vour response for the
record within the next 10 days.

Thank you again. We certainly appreciated yvour testimony.

My. PorTER. Thank you.

AMr. Bart. Thank you.

Chairman Owens. Before we proceed to the next panel, I would
like to acknowledge the presence of Dr. Sharon Robinson. the
nominec for Assistant Secretary for ORI We certainly appreciate
Ler attendance here—all ears, we hope.

Our next panel is Mr. Alfred Taubman. Chairman, Board of 1h-
rectors of Michigan Partnership for New Education: Dr. Judith
Larier. President of Michigan Partnership for New Education, who
i= accompanied by Elnora Crutchfield, Assistant Principal for the
seventh grade of the Holmes Middle School in Flint, Michigan; and
Dr. Carlton Brown, Dean of the School of Liberal Arts and Educa-
ton, Hampton University, Hampton, Virginia.
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I think it might be appropriate, before you begin, to take a break
for a vote. We will break for 10 minutes.
[Recess.]

Chairman Owens. Please take your seats.

STATEMENTS OF A. ALFRED TA 'BMAN, CHAIRMAN. BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, MICHIGAN PARTMERSHIP FOR NEW EDUCATION,
MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY. EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN: .
JUDITh LANLER, PRESIDENT, MICHIGAN PARTNERSHIP FOR
NEW EDUCATION, ACCOMPANIED BY ELNORA CRUTCHFIELD.
ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL FOR THE SEVENTH GRADE, HOLMES
MIDDLE SCHOOL. FLINT. MICHIGAN: AND CARLTON BROWN,
Ph.D.. DEAN, SCHOOL OF LIBERAL ARTS AND EDUCATION,
HAMPTON UNIVERSITY., HAMPTON, VIRGINIA

Chairman Owens. We have introduced our paneiists already. We
will start with Mr. Taubman.

Mr. TausMmaN. Good morning, distinguished members of the
Committee on Education and Labor. I am A. Alfred Taubman. the
Chairman of the Board of Taubman Centers. Inc., a $2.7 billion real
estate investment trust, and Sotheby's Holdings, Inc., the world's
oldest and largest fine art auction company.

I am here today as Chairman of the Michigan Partnership for
New Education. a nonprofit consortium of business, higher educa-
tion, government, and labor committed to higher standards of
teaching and learning for the children in Michigan. I am also here
as a proud product of Michigan's educational system and one who
happens to be dyslexic. When I was young, we didn't know what to
call the condition, and I wasn’t even diagnosed. They just thought I
was inadequate.

The memory of that frustration fuels my passion today and my
commitment to educational change, with all we know about learn-
ing, to give every American child a genuine chance to reach for the
stars.

I come before you today to express my deep concern with the
quality of our public education system, a system that has inad-
equately responded to changes in society and the workplace. I also
want to express my unequivocal support for FI.R. 856, which reau-
thorizes and restructures OERI. We must put a stop to mediocrity
in American classrooms, and believe, as a Nation, that our children
can achieve world-class standards of learning; and then we must
put into place a system that can live up to those standards, begin-
ning with superbly prepared educators and cutting-edge research
on teaching and learning.

Five years ago. [ became a serious student of educational reform.
I was dissatisfied as a donor. convinced that the tens of millions of
dollars I had invested in model schools and private initiatives were
not having the impact that I had hoped for. 1 began discussions
with then Michigan Governor Jim Blanchard and Dr. Judith
Lanier. the Dean of Michigan State's School of Education. who is
here with me today.

We agreed that by joining forces we could build o pawrtnership
that could create credible prototypes of a new education where re-
scarch, preparation, and innovation would take place. Three years
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ago, the Michigan Partnership was formed; we are here today to
share some of the lessons we have learned.

We have invested over $25 million in a new statewide system of
teaching and learning. At the heart of our strategy is a network of
professional development schools that perform applied R&D as well
as capacity-building for educational leadership. We have 19 proto-
type schools open in Michigan, working with eight of the 14 public
}miversities that certify 85 percent of Michigan's educational work-
orce.

As an investor, I did share the public skepticism regarding re-
search and higher education’s ability to respond to local problems
in real schools, but now I am convinced that we will not achieve
adequate change without also changing the way teachers are pre-
pared and the way research is conducted.

How and why, you might ask, can we increase our expenses
when budgets are shrinking? Number one, we can't afford not to.
Business as usual is failing. And educational costs continue to esca-
late. In a decade, spending on K-12 education has risen 40 percent
to $274 billion, or 4 percent of GNP. Business has spent an addi-
tional $210 billion a year on training and upgrading including $40
billion in remedial education, which is basically teaching graduates
of our high schools how to read, write and do simple mathematics,
a huge tax on business having to pay twice.

Finally, less than one-tenth of 1 percent, as mentioned here
before. of every educational dollar is spent on R&D, compared to
industry averages of 5 to 20 percent. So when will we say
“enough,” and learn what businesses have already learned?

If you are in the manufacturing business producing widgets and
25 percent of your widgets fail, you can’t sell another 25 percent
because they are so badly made; you don’t hire more salesmen, you
fix the widget machine. We can't improve quality without improv-
ing the process.

Similarly, educators and policymakers must return to the factory
floor—reform education—and that means higher education. Con-
gress must hold universities to higher standards of productivity
and research in preparing our educational workforce. Today, uni-
versities enjoy a monopoly on how teachers and administrators are
licensed and certified; they must do a better job of preparing teach-
ers and responding to real problems in real schools. This will re-
quire a rigorous agenda that applies research to curriculum prepa-
ration for future teachers.

So what is a private citizen to do?

In January, I met with Secretarv Riley to discuss the Federal
Government’s role. Unfortunately, Federal dollars now invested in
teaching universities that prepare teachers and policymakers often
neglect important innovations being tested. If new and existing re-
search dollars instead become tied to local reform initiatives and
local schools become sites where future teachers are prepared,
scarce Federal dollars would have a chance of hitting a home run.

The reauthorization of OERI could have a significant multiplier
effect. Our experience in Michigan suggests that universities
remain gatekeepers to change and lack significant incentives to
change. They continue to win Federal funding to finance business
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as usual. We can no longer afford research that happens predomi-
nantly in the ivory tower.

Secretary Riley agreed and he suggested that OERI was the
proper vehicle for the job. What has ensued is an exciting collabo-
ration among OERI and Congressman Owens’ staff, the Taubman
Foundation and the Michigan Partnership. If H.R. 856 is passed
along with Goals 2000, I think education consortiums like ours will
have the gumption and necessary resources to reform and renew
educational delivery systems, State by State, across the Nation.

As a businessman, I can sell the importance of R&D to my peers,
but I need your help. Most businesses are turning sour on the
promise of scheool reform. This legislation can help reinvigorate
their involvement and reinforce the importance of their involve-
ment in holding universities to higher standards. We can leverage
private sector investment in R&D with incentives from the Federal
Government.

So why is the reauthorization of OERI so urgent at this time? As
an example, after the Civil War, President Lincoln was faced with
a national crisis; the Nation’s agriculture base was damaged. It was
difficult to feed our own pecple though most Americans lived on
farms. Lincoln asked the country’s elite universities to help. They
told them that they didn’t teach agriculture and then, of course,
the Land Grant Educational Reform Act was born out of necessity.

Today, less than 3 percent of the population produces a surplus
of food for this Nation and helps feed the whole world. It could not
have been done without the land grant mission. Today, in our age
of information and technology, we must increase our learning pro-
ductivity in order to compete internationally. We need to revitalize
the components of the agriculture reforms in a new educational
concept.

We cannot depend on just the Yales and the Harvards. They
don’t produce teachers. Research must be done in the field in the
classrooms where teachers work.

I know Congressman Owens shares this vision. I applaud him for
daring to think that big. Our country’s future is at stake.

On a more practical note, OERI deserves support because,
number one. OERI is uniquely positioned to leverage higher re-
turns from current Federal dollars by insisting that universities,
reformers and State legislators link arms.

The bill invests in the capacity and infrastructure for change.

Number three, together we can demonstrate that investing in an
infrastructure for R&D has a short- and long-term payoff also. The
bill embraces the concept of professional development schools,
which are fundamentally changing the way schools and schools of
education do business. Michigan State University, as an example,
has totally restructured its certification process for teachers.
Future teachers are being taught in clinical settings much like doc-
tors experience in internship and residency in teaching hospitals.
This is tangible evidence of what new teaching and learning can
do.

Finally, reauthorizing OERI will send strong signals and incen-
tives to universities to change. It will also accelerate State reform
by encouraging educators and policymakers and reformers to work
together at the community level.
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OERI can and should be the infrastructure for ongoing innova-
tions in educational renewal at the State and university level. As
the Land Grant University did for agriculture, the professional de-
velopment school can be our educational experiment station. We
must begin to produce higher productivity from teaching and learn-
ing. The reauthorization of OERI is a responsible start.

If this legislation helps accelerate work like ours in States across
the country, and I think it will, I believe we would be back insist-
ing on higher levels of R&D investment from the Federal Govern-

ment. 1 believe that in the end. vou will agree that it was money
well invested.

Thank you.
Chairman Owens. Thank you.
{The prepared statement of Mr. Taubman follows:]
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STATEMENT OF A. ALFRED TAUBMAN
TO THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON
SELECT EDUCATION AND CIViL RIGHTS
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
REGARDING
THE EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT
AND DISSEMINATION EXCELLENCE ACT

A. Alfred Taubman
Chatrmun
Michigan Purtnership for New Education

May 27, 1993

Good moming. distnguished members of the Committee on Education and Labor. 1am
A. Alfred Taubman, Chairman of the Board of two New York Stock Exchange
companies: Taubman Centers, Inc , a $2.7 billion real estate investment trust, and
Sotheby's Holdings. Inc.. the world's oldest and largest fine art auction company.

More importantly, I am also Chairmian of the Michigan Partnership for New Education, a
non-profit consortium of business, higher education, governmert ard labor committed 1o
higher standards of teaching and lcarning for all children in my home state of Michigan.

I come before you today as a private citizen and businessman decply concerned with the
quality of our public education system. a system that is inadequately responding to
changes in society and the workplace.

We must put a stop to the mediocrity characterizing most American classrooms today. and
believe as a nauon that all of our children can achieve world-class standards of learning.
We then must put in place a system that can live up to those standards. beginning with
superbly prepared educators and cutting-edge research on teaching and learning.
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Five years ago I became a serious student of educational reform. 1 was dissatisfied as a
donor, convinced that the tens of millions of dollars I had invested in model schools and
private educational initiatives were not having the impact that I had hoped for. I began
discussing the needs of education with then Michigan Governor Jim Blanchard and Dr.
Judith Lanier, then Dean of Michigan State University's School of Education. We all
agreed that reforms to date had lacked the capacity to respond systemically, and that by
joining forces we could build a partnership able to design and implement credible
prototypes of a new education where research, preparation and the dissemination of
innovations would take place. Three years ago the Michigan Partnership was formed, and
a delegation of us are here today to share some of the lessons we've leamed about school
reform and the importance of applied research and dissemination.

Today, with Governor John Engler's active leadership, we have invested over $25 million
in a state-wide innovations system for teaching and leaming. At the heart of our strategy
is a network of professional development schools, schools with local sanction and state
mandate to perform applied research and development and capacity building for existing
and future educational leadership in our state. We have 19 prototype schools open in
Michigan working with 8 of the 14 public universities that certify 85 percent of
Michigan's educational workforce.

For me, working with the Michigan Partnership has been a challenging and rewarding
undertaking. I've come to appreciate the crucial and all-too-often absent role that applied
research and development musi play in ensuring the renewal and reform of our
educational delivery systems. I'm here to express my unequivocal support of

H.R. 856, The Educationa} Research and Development and Dissemination Act, which will
reauthorize and restructure OERI.

As an investor, let me begin by saying I shared the public's skepticism regarding rescarch
and higher education’s ability to respond to local problems in real schools. But after
years of experimentation in model programs and an analysis of current spending, I have
come to the conclusion that we will not achieve systemic change and ongoing educational
renewal without simultaneously changing the way that teachers are prepared and research
is conducted.

How and why, you might ask, can we increase our research and development expenditures
at a time when budgets are shrinking?

1. We simply cannot afford not to. “Business as usual” is failing, and educational
costs continue to escalate. Currently one out of every three state dollars is spent
on K-12 education. In the past ten years, annual spending on elementary and
secondary education has risen 40 percent (even after adjusting for inflation) to
$274 billion or four percent of our GNP. Businesses spend an annual $210 billion
on training and upgrading, including $40 billion on remedial education (which, by
the way, is an unfair tax on business, since we pay to teach our workforce how to
read and write, a cost our international competition does not have to bear). In
addition, businesses contribute 316 million of philanthropic dollars earmarked for
K-12 improvements. Higher education received another $200 million for a total of
$516 million.
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Ten years after the landmark report, The Nation at Risk, we stand even more
precariously on the edge of defeat. Businesses and parents are getting impatient

and we don't have the political capital or the will to invest in new ways of teaching
and learning. The public wants solutions and rightly so.

To date, our attempts at reform have been piecemeal, resulting in well-thought-out
designs to replace or improve components of schools, but no delivery system for
broadscale implementation, let alone systemic reform.

The realities for most communities remain: Over 90 percent of most educational
budgets are spent on payroll, leaving little money for upgrading the process used to
create teachers and administrators. Even less money is spent investigating ways to
better manage the "business” of the schools. And even less money is spent on

research for progressive new ways to teach.

The stark truth is that less than one-tenth of one percent of educational
expenditures is spent on R&D, compared to private industry averages of five to
twenty percent. Let’s face the facts: We are never going to climb out of this hole
the way we are going.

So when will we say enough and learn what businesses have had to learn these past two
decades?

1f 25 percent of your widgets fail, and you can't sell another 25 percent because they are
inadequately made, a business does not hire more salesmen. You have to fix the machine.
Deming taught businesses that we simply cannot improve product quality, (in our case
higher levels of teaching and learning) without systemically and continuously improving
the process that creates the product (again, in our case teachers and learners). Educators
and policymakers must return o the factory floor, and in education that means higher
education.

Universities have for the most part been left out of the school reform equaiion. They are
perceived as obstacles to change. While often warranted, this perception cannot continue.
Congress must hold universities to higher standards of productivity in research and in thc
preparation of our future educational workforce. Today universitics enjoy a complete
monopoly on how teachers and administrators are licensed and certified. They must do a
better job of preparing teachers and responding to real problems in real schools.

This will require a rigorous applied research and dissemination agenda, committed to
understanding how substantial increases in leaming occur, and able to feed that
information back into the curriculum that prepares future teachers. It's the only way to
break the remedial quagmire we're in today.

So what is a private citizen to do?

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC



In January, I met with Secretary Riley to outline ways that the federal government could
invest in educational reform based on our four-year learning curve at the Michigan
Pantrership. T maintained then that the federal government has a unique role to play 1
educational reform. By defimtion you have been in the research and development
business. A high percentage of federal dollars are already invested 1n teaching universities __
that prepare teachers and policymakers and in research universitics that study teaching and
learning. Typically, however, both these investments are made in a vacuum, often
neglecting the important innovations that are being tested in schools trying to respond to
changing workforce criteria and heightened social problems. If new and existing research
dollars became tied to local reform initiatives, and local schools became sites where future
teachers are prepared, scarce federal dollars would have the chance of hitting a home-run.

In this way, the reauthorization of OERI could have a significant multiplier effect in
accomplishing educational reform and renewal.

Our expenence in Michigan suggests that universities rema:n gatekeepers to change.
These institutions have not had significant incentives to change their research and practice,
or respond to the problems teachers face once they are prepared, because they continue to
win federal funding and receive tuition dollars to finance "business as usual.” We can no
longer afford research that happens predominately in the 1vory tower.

Secretary Riley agreed, and suggested that OERI was the venicle to get behind. What has
ensued is an exciting collaboration among OERJ, Congressman Owens' staff, The
Taubman Foundation and the Michiga.« Partnership.

If this legisiauon is passed, along with Goals 2000, 1 think private/public/higher education
consortiums like ours wiil have the gumption and necessary resources to respond
imaginatively to the pressing need to reform and renew educational delivery systems.
state-by-stale, across the nation.

As a businessmar, I know [ can seil the imponance of R&:D to my peers. But I'li need
your help. Most businesses are turning sour on the promise of school reform. This
legislation can help reinvigorate their involvement and educale them to the complexities of
reform and the importance of their involvement in holding their universities to higher
standards. We can leverage pnivate-sector investment for research and development with
incenuves from the federal government.

So, why 1s the reauthonzation of OERI so urgent at this ime?

100 years ago, President Lincoln was faced with a natonal cnsis. We had just been
ravaged by the Civil War and the ration’s agncultural base was severely damaged. We
had difficulty feeding our own people, yet most of the population was agranan. Lincoln
turned to the umversities and asked for help. They informed him that they did not teach
agriculture, and the Land Grant Educational Reform Act was born out of necessity.
Today, less than three percert of the population produces a surplus of food for this naion
and the world. 1t could not have been done withoul the Land-Grant Mission.



I maintain we are in a similar swate today. The industrial age is over We live 1n an age
of information and technology. We need to increase our learming productivity in order to
compete intemnationally and "feed our pedple.™ We need to rev+tahize the components of
the Agricultural Extension Service and Experiment Stations in a new educational context
We cannot der<nd on the Harvards and the Yales to help us out of this problem. They
are not the preducers of teachers. Research must be done in the field, in the classrooms.
where our children are. I know Congressman Owens shares this vision and [ appiaud him
for danng 1o thisk that big. We must. The future of this country 1s at stake.

On a more practical Jevel, OERI deserves support and reauthonzation because:

1.

The federal government already invests substantial dollars in higher education and
rescarch, and OERI 15 umiquely posinened to leverage higher returns from those
investments by insisting that univ2rsities, reformers and stale legislators link arms.

This bill is the hincnpin and perhaps pre-cursor to systenic reform because 1t
invests 1n the capacity and intrastructure for change.

[t wisely embraces the concept of professional developinent schools, understanding
that for very httle extra cost the same OERI expenmental research dollars can also
be capacity-building and dissemination dollars 1f the federal government 1nsists that
teacher preparation and research on teaching and learming happen in applied
setungs.

Together we can demonsrate that mvesting in an infrastructure for R&D has short-
and-long-term pay-offs (We have 19 Professionai Devclopment Schools across the
state working with local, community and business Ieaders to protect the innovations
they are incubating. These schools have a mandate to simultaneously conducl
cutting-edge research in applied settuings and train existing and future educators )

Professional development schools are fundamenially changing the way schools and
schools of education ao business. Based on the research generated 1n our
professianal development schools, Michigan State University has totaliy
restructured 1ts certification process for teachers. Future teachers are being laught
in chinical selungs, much the same way doctors expenence an intermnship and
residency in “teaching hospitals.” We can show skepucs langibly what new
teaching and learming 1ooks like, and visitors can actually see the importance of
integrated research and preparation.

Finally, the reauthorizauon of OERI will send strong signals and incentives for
universities to change. It will also acceierale state reform initiatives by
encouraging teacher educators, staie poitcymakers and reformers to work together
at the community lesel  Uitimately, businesses want 1o work at the local level.
OFERI can help butld that focal intrastructure and leverage private dollars by doing
S0




PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

58

OERI can and should be the infrastructure for ongoing innovations and educational
renewal at the state and university level. As the Land Grant University did for
agriculture, the professional development school can be our educational experiment
station. We must begin to think of long-term, systematic ways to yield higher
productivity from teaching and learning. The reauthorization of OER] is a responsible
start.

It helps put into place a coordinated strategy and system for research, demonstration,
preparation and dissemination to work together, coherently responding to ongoing changes
in society and education. T believe it is time to begin to think as big as the Land Grant
Mission for Education. If th;s Jegislation helps accelerate work like ours in states across
the country -- and I think it will -- I believe we will be back insisting on higher levels of
R&D investment from the federal sovernment, and I believe in the end you will agree it
was money wisely invested.
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Chairman Owens. Dr. Judith Lanier.

Dr. Lanier. Congressman Owens, if it would be possible, I would
like to have Ms. Crutchfield speak first since she is a teacher and
working in one of the schools. That will give context and meaning
to my remarks if she comes before me. Would that be permissible?

Chairman Owens. Certainly.

I would like to note the presence of our distinguished Senator
from Michigan, Senator Riegle.

Thank you very much for coming by. Senator, you are welcome
to stay and join us.

Senator RieGLE. Thank you. If I may—1I appreciate your acknowl
edging my presence. I wanted to come over, and had [ been able to
get here sooner, I wanted to say a word just before Mr. Taubman
spoke on behalf of the program that he has laid out. And you will
hear more about it now from your next witness, but we think this
is a tremendous breakthrough; and I want to thank you for your
leadership and interest in conducting this hearing.

I am actually holding a hearing myself in the Banking Commit-
tee, but I put someone else in charge to come over, because I teel so
strongly about it, and I think this reaily is a breakthrough concept.
And so Dr. Lanier will lay out for you an elaboration of what Mr.
Taubman has said, but I appreciate very much his leadership in
stepping forward.

We hear about these partnerships with the private sector, and
usually it is more talk than action. This is action, and his leader-
ship, I think, is extremely important to the country on this issue;
and I thank you for your courtesy.

Chairman OwenNs. Thank you very much, Senator. I appreciate
your stopping by.

Senator RieGLE. Thank you.

Chairman Owens. Ms. Crutchfield.

Ms. CrRUTCHFIELD. Good morning. Mr. Chairman and members of
the subcommittee, thank you for the opportunity to present testi-
mony on the Educational Research, Development and Dissemina-
tion Excellence Act. As a teacher and assistant principal in the
Holmes Middle School in Flint, Michigan, I strongly urge your pas-
sage of this bill, since better educational understanding and know-
how is critical to me as a teacher and to my teacher colleagues.
Without better knowledge and insight about what works—and how
we come to know what works—those of us struggling to help stu-
dents learn will have a much harder, if not impossible, time achiev-
ing this Nation's goals for better learning. My remarks focus pri-
marily on Title IV of the Act, since it affects me directly through
the creation of the National Education Dissemination System.

Now, it may be unusual for an educator pressured with the work
on the front lines of an inner-city school to take precious time
away from students to speak on behalf of education research. I say
this because if it were not for my experiences with the Michigan
Partnership for New Education in recent years, I would never have
come to Washington to urge greater investment in education re-
search and dissemination. Never before was educational R&D ac-
cessible to me in forms that helped improve my teaching and that
of my colleagues, as well as our students’ motivation and learning.

63
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I must tell vou that in my prior vears as a teacher I was never
motivated to review the research literature on teaching or learning
or educationally at-risk students. I was forced to read some of this
during my years as an undergraduate and later as a graduate stu-
dent, but it was all pretty abstract stuff, far removed from the
practical demands of my daily encounters with students. Occasion-
allv [ felt that I should stay abreast with the research, but how
could I do this and when could 1 do it? It comes out in so many
volumes of so many different journals that there was no way that |
could possibly keep up with it. And even if it were more organized
and in less disarray as a field. time for committed teachers who
struggle daily with the pressing needs of students is simply not
available.

But time alone is not the problem. Even with more time. we
teachers wouldn't use it to study the research literature anymore
than we do now. It is not helpful in its current form., since it rarely
relates to the problems at hand and it rarely addresses the every-
day situations we find in our work. I am not saving that some
pieces of the research information don't contribute to better under-
standing of the problems we encounter in teaching and in school
administration, but the problems we face are typically much more
complicated than any of the research I have ever read. And work-
shops on the findings and uses of research aren't much better.
They often deal with topics of interest. but they don’t help me
when T am back at school struggling with the complex challenges
of getting poor kids in Flint to learn important lessons.

So what was different about the Michigan Partnership experi-
ence, and how did it change my mind in regard to educational re-
search? The Michigan Partnership brought university and school
facuity together in my community—in four feeder schools of the
northwest quadrant in Flint, in two elementary schools, one middle
school and a high school. We worked together over the past 3 years
there, to innovate and demonstrate better teaching and learning
for Flint students in those schools.

The partnership bought us time to think and work together. time
to think and to combine what they know through the educational
research with what the school faculty knew from educational expe-
riences,

And together we created better learning opportunities for stu-
dents. All of us learned a great deal and expect to learn a great
deal more in the years to come. But let me tell vou more about the
arrangement and suggest its promise for disseminating research
knowledge on a broader scale than in Flint, Michigan, alone, par-
ticularly as it relates to the development of learning grant institu-
tions and cadres of research and development teacher-change
agents.

The Michigan Partnership is a collaboration among a set of busi-
ness. education, and government leaders who want to improve
learning for Michigan kids. They figure that you can't improve
learning for kids without improving learning for teachers and
changing the wavs vur schools now operate and relate to local com-
munities. So the universities that care about applying educationsl
research in real settings, while combining it with better teacher
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educations, are given additional financial resources to partner with
innovators in real schools and communities.

Together we create and operate what is called Innovation Dem-
onstration Sites, places that apply the best we know from the re-
search and experiences, places that invite members of the public
and future educators to come and learn from what we do. We
become living examples of educational change in action, and we
become an educational reform network that is grounded in re-
search. Maybe one day we will call these learning grant institu-
tions. But let me explain this in a more concrete term through an
example of my work.

In the summer of 1990, the school and university faculty met to
talk about the problems of students in Holmes Middle School
where 1 work. We mat in study groups, and mine was concerned
with reducing the isolation of limited learning opportunities made
available to special education students. The inclusion research, as
it was called, was aimed at including special education students in
regular education classes, places where they had formerly been ex-
cluded.

At the same time, another line of research we considered was
from cognitive studies about the learning tasks and activities made
available to students. The cognitive research suggested that more
active, thoughtful engagement on students’ parts was critical to un-
derstanding and high-level learning. So we began acting on the im-
plications of both the inclusion and cognitive studies.

After struggling with the problem of implementation and
change, we found that many students were doing better, but some
were not. We began to experience more student disruption and mis-
behavior; and, of course, that was expected out of some kids. And
in some classes, there was an increase in student suspension. So
where were the researchers then when we needed them? Well, they
were right there with us helping us to figure out the problems as
well as to help us create the potential solutions to those problems,
for they were in the site with us for good. Now, I don’t want to be-
labor the point, but I think you should know a bit more.

In our subsequent study we noted that while disruptions came
from both special and regular education students, they came pri-
marily from students with frequent absences. As these students
acted out, it led to further absences from suspensions or time-outs
leading naturally to further detrimental effects on their education.

Yet when these kids returned to classes and had better interac-
tive and active student work, they made less trouble. With our
change from passive to more active learning, the frequently absent
student had a more difficult time figuring out and fitting back into
the classroom setting.

It was harder for them to reestablish relationships with groups
of students who worked together actively on a daily basis, forming
relationships with one another as they learned. So our implementa-
tion of the cognitive research had helped some students but had
caused problems for others. So what then? Well, it is too long of a
tale for me to continue, but we didn't quit. We kept working at it.

Acling on further research, we developed an alternative educa-
tion program for these students. The literature notes that tradi-
tional in-school suspension programs were more or less known as
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dumping grounds for students or disruptive students; so we de-
signed our own around an integrated activity based curriculum.

We continued to act on the cognitive research but now under-
stood that inclusion research depends on students and their con-
text. But imagine these same circumstances in the typical research
dissemination paradigm.

I would likely have learned about one or more of these recom-
mended innovations from a classroom or a workshop or I might
have learned about them from a consultant coming in and giving
us in-service training. In either case, it is likely that I would not
have tried the new activities since they were both major changes in
school policy and practice. And even if I had, as soon as a few stu-
dent disruptions began, I would probably have abandoned the new
innovations entirely before affecting my students’ learning.

There are lessons in this experience that have implications of a
dissemination system such as you hope for in Title IV.

First, good dissemination must include examples in deed as well
as in word. It needs to include demonstrations in real school set-
tings, places where the research is actually applied by persons who
are experts in using it for better student learning. External ex-
perts—usually distant from the complexities of the daily life in
schools—are always eager to sell their research advice and to tell
teachers and administrators what they should do, but they seldom
come in to demonstrate potential implications, to work out the
kinks of application, or to find potential errors in their over-gener-
alizaticns.

And they rarely stay to learn about the longer-term conse-
quences of the innovation over time or to cumulate and integrate
more powerful ideas and innovations with one another. The dis-
semination of research from a partnership school such as mine is a
powerful strategy for it prevides concrete examples, ones that visi-
tors can come in and observe and interact with. Visitors, like Mr.
Taubman and his business colleagues, as well as educators from
other places come in and question the school and university faculty
who applied and conducted the research and later maybe if it
didn’t work went back and revisited and researched more.

Visitors ques’ion students about how their experiences have
changed and ask students to explain what it is they are learning.
We have a growing number of future teachers also learning in our
school and others like them, so now the next generation of Michi-
gan teachers can learn to apply the research as well.

We also have educators from the university and school district
taking mini-sabbaticals to study with us. The effects of the applied
research are evident in these innovation demonstration sites.

So my recommendaticn is to pass the bill. But, have teacher-
change agents as persons who can demonstrate research applica-
tions instead of those who have merely taken some training about
it.

And I recommend having your learning grant institutions as
partnership schools, places where university and schools collabo-
rate officially in the conduct, application, and demor.stration of
educational research and development for better student and
teacher learning.
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You see, when I received my teacher preparation, I was taught
from a book. And when I graduated and took a job, I found that the
school was nothing like what I had learned from the book. So, I
would go into the classroom, close my door, do the best job that I
could. T didn’t use research, and I did not collaborate with my col-
leagues. Today that has all changed. Our partnership school pro-
vides a common ground for teachers and teacher educators to pre-
pare future and practicing educators for new knowledge and skills
in a changing world of teaching and learning.

We focus on students and learning, and collaborate in research
application and demonstration. Applying research, for me, now
means that as a school, as a system, as an educator, and as a field,
we are all making continuous progress. Each new problem we solve
helps us to ask a new question. Each new question helps us to pro-
vide even better experiences for our students.

We no longer get stuck thinking about implementing a technical
model. When we thought about implementing a technical model,
we worried about the model, not the learner. The research is now
helpful to us and our students.

So I urge you, again, to reauthorize the Office of Educational Re-
search and Improvement. And I urge you to focus the dissemina-
tion system on the networks of learning grant institutions, ones
that have partnership schools as a central component, and ones
that have can-do, teacher-change agents and key actors in them.
Federal, State, and university support for the creation and mainte-
nance of such applied dissemination sites could make them avail-
able throughout the United States.

I thank you for your attention, and this opportunity to speak to
you today.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Crutchfield follows:]

STATEMENT OF EL.NORA CRUTCHFIELD, ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL AND TEACHER. HotMes
MippLe ScHoor. Frint, MicHIGAN

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, thank you for the opportunity
to present testimony on the Educational Research. Development and Dissemination
Excellence Act [H.R. 856]. As a teacher and assistant principal in the Holmes
Middle School in Flint. Michigan. I strongly urge your passage of this bill. since
better educational understanding and know-how is critical to me as and my teacher
colleagues. Without better knowledge and insight about what works—and how we
come to know what works—those of us struggling to help students learn will have a
much harder [if not impcssible] time achieving this Nation's goals for better learn-
ing. My remarks focus primarily on Title IV of the Act, since it affects me directly
through the creation of a National Education Dissemination System.

Now. it may be unusual for an educator pressured with work on the front lines of
an inner-city school to take precious time away from students to speak on behalf of
education research. | say this because if it were not for my experiences with the
Michigan Partnership for New Education in recent years, I would never have come
to Washington to urge greater investment in education research and dissemination.
Never before was educational R&D accessible to me in forms that helped improve
my teaching and that of my colleagues—as well as our students’ motivation and
learning.

I must tell you that in my prior years as a teacher 1 was never motivated to
review the research literature on teaching or learning or educationally at-risk stu-
dents. I was forced to read some of this during my years as an undergraduate and
later as a graduate student, but it wae all pretty abstract stuff—far removed from
the practical demands of my dinly encounters with students. Occasionally 1 felt that
I should stay abreast with the research—but how and when? 1t comes out in so
many volumes of so many different journals that there was no way that I could pos-
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ribly keep up. And even if it were more organized and in less disarray as a field—
time for committed teachers who struggie daily with the pressing needs of students
is simply not available. But time alone is not the problem.

Even with more time, we teachers wouldn't use it to study the research literature
any more than we do now. It is not helpful in its current form. since it rarely re-
lates to the problems at hand, and it rarely addresses the evervday situations we
find in our work. I'm not saying that some pieces of the research information don't
contribute to better understanding of the problems we encounter in teaching and
school administration—but the problems we face are typically much more compli-
cated than any of the research 1 have ever read. And workshops on the findings and
uses of research aren’t much better. They often deal with topics of interest, but they
don’t help me much when I am back at school struggling with the complex chal-
lenges of getting poor kids in Flint to learn important lessons.

So what was different about the Michigan Partnership experience—and how did it
change my mind in regard to educational research? The Michigun Partnership
brought university and school faculty together in my community—in four feeder
schools of the northwest quadrant in Flint—in two elementary schools, one middle
school and one high school. We worked together over the past three vears there, to
innovate and demonstrate better teaching and learning for Flint students in those
schools.

The Partnership bought us time to think and work together—time to combine
what the university faculty knew from educational research with what the sehool
faculty knew from educational experience—and together we created better learning
opportunities for students. All of us learned a great deal—and expect to learn more
in the vears to come. But let me tell yvou more about the arrangement, and suggest
its promise for disseminating research knowledge on a broader scale than in Flint.
Michigan alone—particularly as it relates to the development of “learning grant”
institutions and cadres of research and development “teacher-change agents.”

The Michigan Partnership is a collaboration among a set of business. education.
and government leaders who want to improve learning for Michigan kids. They
figure that you can't improve learning for kids without improving learning for
teachers. however, and changing the ways our schools now operate and relate te
local community. So the universities that care ubout applying educational research
in real settings—while combining it with better teacher education—are given addi-
tional financial resources to partner with innovators in real schools and communi-
ties. Together we create and operate what we call innovation-demonstration sites—
places that apply the best we now know from rescarch and experience—places that
invite members of the public and future educators to come and learn from what we
do. We become living examples of educational change in action—and we become an
education reform network that is grounded in research. [Maybe one day we will call
these “learning grant institutions.”| But let me explain this in more concrete terms.
through an example of our work.

In the summer of 1490, the school and university faculty met to talk abou: the
prohlems of students in Holmes Middle School where 1 work. We met in study
groups. and mine was concerned with reducing the isolation and limited learning
opportunities made available to special education students. The "inclusion re-
search,” as it was called. was aimed at including special education students in regu-
lar education classes—places where they had formerly been excluded. At the same
time, another line of research we considered was from cognitive studies about the
learning tasks and activities made nvailable to students |[both regular and special
cducation|. The cognitive research suggested that more active, thoughtful engage-
ment on students’ part was critical to understanding and high-level learning. So we
bepan acting on the implications of both the inclusion and cognitive studies.

After struggling with the problems of implementation and ehange. we found that
many students were doing better—but some were not. We began to experience more
student disruption and misbehavior than we expected—and in some classes there
was an increase in the student suspensions. So where were the researchers then—
when we needed them? Well, they were there with us. helping to figure out the
problems created as well as the potential solutions—for they are in this site with us
for pood. Now. I don’t want to belabor the point. but vou should know a bit more

Through our subsequent study. we noted that while disruptions came from both
spectal and regular education students—they came primarily from students with
Irequent absences As these students acted out, it led to further absences from sus-
pensions and time-outs—leading naturally. 1o further detrimental effects on their
learning  Yet when these kids returned to elasces that had less interactive and
active stuadent work teuch as tting quietly in their seats filing out assirned dittos]
they made less trouble With our change trom pas<ive to more active learning. the




frequently absent students had a more difficult time fitting back in. It was harder
for them to reestablish relationships with groups of stude nts who worked together
actively on a daily basis—forming relationships with one another as they learned.
So our implementation of the cognitive research had helped some students—but it
had caused problems for others So what then? Well. it is too long of a tale teli here,
but we didn't quit

Acting on further research, we developed an alternative education program for
these students. The literature notes that traditional in-school suspension programs
became nothing more than dumping grounds for disruptive students. so we designed
ours around an integrated activity-based curriculum. We continued to act on the
cognitive research. but now understood that the “inclusion research’” depends on
students and context. But imagine these same circumstances in the typical research
disseminatinon paradigm.

{ would likely have tearned about one or more of these recommended innovations
from a class or a workshop. Or I might have learned about them from a consultant
coming in for in-service training. In cither case it is likely that | would not have
tried the new activities. since they both represent major changes in school policy
and practice. And even if T had, as soon as a few student disruptions hegan, I would
probably have abandoned the new initiatives entirely, before effecting better stu-
dent learning. There are lessons in this experience that have implications for a “dis-
semination system’ such as yvou hope for in Title IV,

First. good dissemination must include examples in deed, as well as in word. It
needs to include demonstration in real school settings- places where the rescarch is
actually applied by persons who are expert in using i. for better student learning.
External experts—usually distant from the complexities of daily life in schools—are
always eager to sell their research advice and to tell teachers and administrators
what they should do. But they seldom come to demonstrate potential implications,
or to work out the kinks of application. or to find poiential errors in their over-
gencralizations. And they rarely stay to learn about the longer-term consequences of
the innovation over time. or to cumulate and integrate more powerful ideas and in-
novations with one another.

The dissemination of research from a partnership school such as mine is a power-
ful strategy. for it provides concrete examples—ones that visitors can observe and
interact with, Visitors—Ilike Mr. Taubman and his business colleagues—as well as
educators from other places come and question the school and university faculty
viho apply and conduct thewr research there. Visitors question students about how
their experiences have changed and ask students to explain what it is they are
learning. We have a growing number of future teachers learning in our school and
others like them—so now the next generation of Michigan teachers can learn to
apply the research as well. We also have educators from other universities and
school districts taking mini-sabbaticals to study with us. The effects of the applicd
rescarch are evident in these “innovation/demonstration’ sites.

So my recommendation is to pass this bill. But it is to have teacher-chuste agents
as persons who can demonstrate research applications— instesd ot those who have
merely “taken some training” about it. And I recomme s aaving vour “learning
grant institutions” as “Partnership Schools”—places where universities {who can
bring much of the research talent to bear] and schools collaborate officially in the
conduct. application. and demonstration of educational research and development
for better student and teacher learning.

You see, when 1 received my teacher prepavation, 1 was taught from a book.
When 1 graduated and took a job. I found that the school was nothing like what 1
learned from th book. So I to shut the door and do the best T could. 1 didn’t use
research and 1 d not collaborate with my calleagues. Today that has changed. Qur
partnership school provides a common ground for teachers and teacher educators to
prepare future and practicing educators for new knowledge and skill in a changing
world of teaching and learning. We focus on students learning. and collaborate in
research application and demonstration. Applying research for me now means that
as a school, as & svstem, as an educator, and as a field. we are all making continu-
ous progress. Each new problem we solve helps us ask new questions. Each new
question helps us pravide even better experiences for our students. We no longer got
stuck thinking about implementing a technical model. When we thought about im-
plementing a model we worried about the model, not the learners. The research is
now helptul to us, and our students

So 1 urge vou again to reauthorize the Office of Educational Rescarch and Im-
provement And 1 urge you to focus the dissenunation system on networks of learn-
ing grant instituttons—ones that have “partnership schools™ as a central compo-
nent and ones that have “can-da’ teacher-change agents and key actors in them




66

Federal, State, and university support for the creation and maintenance of such ap-
plied dissemination sites could make them available throughout the United States. I
thank you for your attention, and this opportunity to speak with you today.

Chairman OweNs. Dr. Lanier.

Dr. LaNiER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the sub-
committee. It is a pleasure to be here, and I appreciate the oppor-
tunity to speak with you.

I am currently a faculty member at Michigan State University
and President of the Michigan Partnership for New Education,
which, as you have heard, is a collaboration among government,
business, and education to create and sustain a statewide innova.
tion system.

In prior years, I have directed one of the federally funded nation-
al research centers. I have also served as a dean of a large school of
education for a dozen years and engaged myself in research devel-
opment and teaching as a faculty in elementary, secondary, and
high schools and college sectors of society.

Throughout this career, from a beginning teacher i.. the real
rural, small, one-room school to that of the beginning leader in the
uncharted waters of collaborativity which I feel ] am today, I have
worked to forge better connections at all times between educationzl
research and educational practice. ] am a member of the National
Academy of Education.

Today I am here to not only urge your strong support for the re-
authorization of the Office of Educational Research and Improve-
ment but also to speak with you about some possible enhancements
of Title IV of the bill which outlines the plans for the National
Education Dissemination System.

I wanted to stress, by the way, the urgency of your passing the
bill at this particular mcment in this Nation's history since my
sense is that the Nation’s overall commitment to education reform
is waning, largely, I believe, because of the many prior reform ef-
forts of the last 10 years from the time A Nation at Risk was an-
nounced largely because many of those reform efforts were not
grounded in research, were ill-directed and, thus, we were not very
successful. And further I also think that the students and teachers
of this country, in particular, deserve access to a better education
than they are currently getting and educational R&D is essential
to their better success.

In terms of Title IV of the current Act, as you have spelled it out
currently in H.R. 856, there are two major directions that I would
urge modification, should there still be time.

First, the proposed dissemination system, I believe, needs to be
more systemlike. By that I mean that instead of a series of discon-
nected projects, all worthy in and of themselves—remember we
have more focused national efforts to disseminate research, and we
build on these learning grant institutions and the teacher exten-
sion agent idea as recommended in the bill—make each of these
purposefully connected, connected to comparable State and local
initiatives and also connected importantly to the education of
teachers.

Without a connection of this sort, the sponsored research devel-

opment and dissemination may likely never actually get to stu-
dents and teachers.
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Further, without such a connection and without cost-sharing—
which we might be able to bring about through a national. State,
and local connection—we, as a Nation, simply will not be able to
afford the means of increasing educational research at the level we
must, or making its knowledge products and tools broadly available
to the students and teachers across this country.

The second means of strengthening the dissemination system sec-
tion of the bill is to connect it better to the work of the proposed
institutes in the earlier part of the bill, while grounding it simulta-
neously in the realities of students, educators, and families in these
real learning grant institutions.

But while I make these suggestions for revision, if these revisions
slow down passage of the bill, I would say change them later. I
urge expeditiovs passage of this particular bill.

A few other comments on the bill itself. The national board that
you speak of to help establish research policies and priorities, I be-
lieve, is very important, especially if it includes a balanced repre-
sentation of research users and research producers. The represen-
tation of lay and professional members on such a board is also im-
portant. The institutes are critical as well.

I would, however, recommend funding them at a $50 million
minimum, bringing them on line gradually as adequate appropria-
tions become available for each.

I say this because insufficient resources increase the danger of
limited success. Creation of an institute increases great public ex-
pectations for high productivity and quality work across the
breadth and depth of the field, not surface attention to huge areas
of concern.

We need to deliver in education, I believe. And if we have limited
funds, it may be better to begin with one or two institutes in criti-
cal areas such as those for at-risk children, seeing that the re-
search is broad and deep and importantly made available to the
users in ways that make its application visible and enduring.

I will speak in more detail now to my concern about the out-
reach and dissemination system.

The authors of the bill have clearly seen the analogy between
the situation confronting agriculture in the late 19th and early
20th century, as Mr. Taubman earlier said. We were an agrarian
society at that time and the demand for food was rising and farm-
ers had neither the habits nor the technology to meet the demand
in the way in which it was occurring.

Now, if we look at the parts of the solution. a major part at that
time was research and development in agriculture. New products
and better ways of working with farners were developed primarily
by land grant universities which had to be created. My point is
that both the Federal and the State and local governments all in-
vested heavily in these R&D activities.

At the same time, as State and local extension services for tech-
nology and knowledge transfer were put in place, colleges of agri-
culture focused their undergraduate and graduate student studies
on the emerging knowledge as it came forward. And as we know,
they were overwhelmingly successful. Now we are less an agrarian
socicty; we are an information, knowledge-based society. And
schools and institutions now are asking for better products as well
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as information on old ones. They are pressed to work together, join-
ing their efforts together as well as with business and industry.

Schools and institutions, too, have an inherited technology; and
that is poorly suited for these new assignments. Yet they have to
deliver for us even though the new products are not well defined,
even though the means of producing them are not fully explored.
The best way of organizing schools and universities for this work is
largely unknown, although we have some early, promising efforts;
but careful work on these issues is needed and it will require both
basic and certainly much more applied research than we have had
heretofore. It will require some experimentation, some develop-
ment work, and certainly close cooperation among universities and
schools in these surrounding communities just as with agriculture
extension. If these things are not done, we simply will not get the
education that America needs.

So the authors of this bill have clearly seen the parallels, but
they should go further in building on the strengths and weaknesses
of the agriculture model. Wouldn't it be nice if we had surpluses of
education and of learning as we have in agriculture? The lessons
suggest the importance of four sections, I believe.

The first is strong connections between research producers and
users. We must bring those together, for learning on both sides.

Second, the need for major investment in research applications
across many different localities of the country. In the work of the
Michigan Partnership, we are thinking of them in rural as well as
urban and suburban environments.

Third, cooperation across levels of government—at the national,
State, and local.

And fourth, placement of much of the research in institutions
that will endure; institutions that prepare the future and existing
workforce in this country in education.

And here I urge reflection of the fact and recognition that we al-
ready know some things from research, more than we are current-
ly doing. So let us now get applicatiors of these results in action,
occurring in real places that you can visit and see.

And then let us exploit those places for the preparation of educa-
tors so that the research that does exist gets into the minds and
hearts of the people who will use it with children in this Nation as
well as in the research journals that go into our libraries.

If the learning grant institutions could effectively become applied
research sites—places where university-school-community partners
engage in innovation. demonstration, and preparation around the
country—they could readily be networked to one another and to
other parts of the education system for sharing what we learn. The
teacher extension agents would be primarily persons who worked
in these sites; people who could do and demonstrate.

The current bill suggests that it is those who have attended a
training session that would become teacher change agents. I am
suggesting that is insufficient; that is important and necessary, but
g0 a step beyond and have these agents be persons who do it.

So the key to success in this regard are the connections ana the
interactions between three pieces: the research application; the re-
search production—which I put in the middle—and research dis-
semination: not a linear pass-it-down model, but a work back-and-
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forth model between ongoing connections of application, produc-
tion, and dissemination for researchers to produce the bits and
pieces of disconnected parts. They are important parts, but parts
that should not be recommended for broad dissemination until they
are tested further in multiple applied settings, brought together
where important quality controls, protections for chiidren, and op-
portunities for school and university faculty learning are in place.
An interface for exchange of research syntheses—some undertaken
by the institutes, and some undertaken in the application sites
themselves, whether they are professional development schools or
learning grant institutions—will be important for the identification
and the generation of important questions of areas of inquiry as
well as evaluation of progress in the field. We forget, as a part of
the agriculture movement, the engineering and mechanical portion
was important because equipment and tools and pieces need to be
connected one te another.

So the pieces and bits of basic research need connection and
learning from their application in real sites.

The Federal Government, it seems, should stimulate investment
in these activities rather than trying to do it themselves in particu-
lar settings. I have learned from Mr. Taubman, whom you heard
from earlier today, that the concept of leverage here is a very im-
portant one especially in the straitened economy that we are in.

If we were to pursue a one-third Federal match for States coming
forward with two-thirds of the resources as well as an acceptable
business plan for establishing an integrated educational innovation
system, one that supported such learning grant institutions that
met standards of quality control, we could make the limited Feder-
al resources go much farther than they otherwise would. And we
could do a better job in the long run as well, for we would effective-
ly be creating an infrastructure for continuously developing and
testing the external validity of educational R&D in this country.

We would have a system for guaranteeing better research syn-
thesis. for it must really come together in applied settings. And we
would also have a means of integrating educational research with
real educational practice. And if we could not begin in all States at
once or if it seems wise to test the ideas for 3 to 5 years or more
before making it broadly available, we could begin with a small set
of innovators who also value educational R&D and are ready to
invest in it with the Federal Government.

Education in America is everybody's business. The States and
the localities and universities and the school districts in the coun-
try should join you in this undertaking. Better educational re-
search is critical to better learning for students, teachers, research-
ers. and even for policymakers. A number of States and the educa-
tors in them are ready to join you in support of increased educa-
tional research.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Lanicer follows:]

STATEMENT OF DR, JunitH TAACK LANIER, PRESIDENT, MICHIGAN PARTNERSHIP FOR
New Epnveation, East LANsING, MicHicaN

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee. [ appreciate the opportunity to
present testimony today on the “Edueational Research, Development, and Dissemi-
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nation Act” [H.R. #56] introduced last February. I am currently a faculty member
at Michigan State University and President of the Michigan Partnership for New
Education—an organization working with Michigan government, business, and edu-
cation to create and sustain a statewide educational innovation system.

In prior vears, I directed one of the federally funded national research centers
[The Institute for Research on Teaching]. served as a Dean of Education for over a
decade. and engaged in research, development and teaching as a faculty member in
elementary. secondary. and collegiaie sectors. Throughout my education career—
from a beginning teacher in a one-room school to that of a beginning leader in the
uncharted waters of collaborative education reform—I have worked to forge better
connections between the worlds of educational research and educational practice. |
am a member of the National Academy of Education.

Today I am here to urge your strong support for the reauthorzation of the Office
of Educational Research and Improvement—although my remarks will «lso be di-
rected at possible enhancements to Title IV of the bill. which outlines plans for a
National Education Dissemination System. I want to stress the urgency of your
passing the bill at this critical moment in our Nation's history. since the Nation's
commitment to education reform is waning—largely because many of the early
reform efforts were not grounded in research. and thus we were not. very successful.
Further. the students and teachers of this country deserve access to a better educa-
tion than they are now getting. and educational R&D can help.

I also want to urge your strengthening Title IV of the current Act in two ways,
First, the proposed dissemination system needs to be more “systems-like.” By this I
mean that focused national efforts to disseminate research [such as the learning
grant institutions and the teacher extension agents recommended in this bill] need
to be purposefully connected to comparable State and local initiatives—and to
teacher education. Without a connection of this so=t, the sponsored research. devel-
opment and dissemination may never actually get to students and teachers in the
systematic manner in which it is intended. Further, without such connection and
cost-sharing. we as a Nation will not be able to afford the means of increasing edu-
cational researcii. and making its knowledge products and tools broadly available to
the students and teachers scross this country that we must reach.

The second means of strengthening the “‘dissemination system' section of the bill
is to connect it better to the work of the proposed institutes—while grounding it
simultaneously in the realities of students. educators, and families in real “learning
grant” institutions over time.

But while I make these suggestions for revision. let me be clear that I urge expe-
ditious passage of this bill A National Board for helping to establish research poli-
cies and priorities is important—especially if it includes some balanced representa-
tion of research users and producers—the representation of lay and professional
members on such a Board is also important. The Institutes are critical as welil, and I
recommend funding them at a 350 million minimum—bringing them on line gradu-
ally as adequate appropriations become available for each of them. I say this be-
cause insufficient resources increase the danger of limited success—creation of an
Institute increases public expectations for high productivity and quality work across
the breadth and depth of the field—not surface attention to huge areas of concern,
We need to deliver in education. and with limited funds, it may be better to begin
with one or two Institutes in critical areas, such as those for at-risk children—
seeing that the research is broad and deep and. importantly, made available to the
users in ways that make its application visible and enduring. I will speak in more
detail, now. to the area of my primary concern—that of outreach and craetion of a
dissemination system.

The authors of this bill have seen the analogy between the situation confronting
agriculture in the late 19th and early 20th centuries. and that of education today.
Then an agrarian society, the demand for food was rising and fa. mers had neither
the habits nor the technology to meet it in predictable ways. A major part of the
solution at that time was research and development in agriculture. New produci
and better ways of working with farmers were developed—mostly by land grant uni-
versities. Both the Federal. State and local governments invested heavily in R&D
activities—as well as in State and local extension services for technology and knowl-
edge transfer. Colleges of agriculture focused their undergraduate and graduate stu-
dents’ studies on the emerging knowledge. As vou know, they were overwhelmingly
successful,

Now we are an information-based. learning society—and schools and universities
are being asked for new products. us well as for better work on old ones. They are
pressed to join their efforts with one another. as well as with business and industry.
They have mherited technology and organization poorly suited to the new assign-
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ments—yet they must deliver, even though the new products are not well defined
and the means of producing them not fully explored. The best ways of organizing
schools and universities to do the work are largely unknown, although some early
efforts seem promising. But careful work on these issues is needed. and it will re-
quire basic and applied research. some experimentation. some development work,
and close cooperation among universities, schools and their surrounding communi-
ties—as with agriculiural extension. If these things are not done, we simply will not
get the better education America needs.

So the authors of this bill noted the parallels. But now they should go further in
building on the system strengths and weaknesses of the agriculture model—for we
could certainly use surpluses of learning in our schools at this time in history. The
lessons suggest the importance of [1] strong connections between research producers
and users, [2] the need for major investment in research applications across many
different localities of the country, [3] cooperation across levels of government, and
(4] placement of much of the research in institutions that will endure—institutions
that prepare the future and existing workforce in the field.

Here | urge recognition of the fact that we already know some things {rom re-
search. So let us now get applications of these “results in action” occurring in some
rval places—and then let us exploit these places for the preparation of teachers and
other educators so that the research that does exist gets into the minds and hearts
of the people who will educate the children of this Nation—as well as into the re-
search journals that go to our libraries. If the “learning grant institutions” could
effectively become applied research sites—places where university-school-community
partners engaged in innovation, demonstration and educator preparation across the
country—they could readily be networked to one another and to other parts of the
education system for sharing what is iearned. The *teacher extension agents” would
be primarily persons who worked in these sites—rather than those who simply had
"knowledge about’ the literature.

But key to success in this regard. are the tonnections and interactions bYetween
research application, research production and research dissemination. Research is
produced in bits and pieces of disconnected parts—important parts—but parts that
should not be recominended for broad dissemination until they are tested further in
maltiple applied settings where, importantly, quality controls. protections for chil-
dren, and opportunities for faculty learning [both school and university] are in
place. An interface for exchange of research syntheses—some undertaken through
the institutes and some undertaken in the application sites |whatever they are
called}—will be important for the identification and generation of new important
questions and areas of inquiry, as well as evaluation of progress in the field.

The Federal Government, it scems, should stimulate investment in these activities
rather than do it themselves in purticular settings. 1 have learned from Mr. Taub-
man. [the successful businessman vou have already heard from today—also the
chair of our board] that the concept of leverage is an important one—especially in a
straitened economy. If we were to pursue a one-third Federal match for States
coming forward with two-thirds of the resources and an acceptable business plan for
establishing an integrated educational innovation system—one that supported the
“learning grart institutions” that met standards of quality control—we could make
the limited Federal resources go much further than they otherwise would. And we
could do a better job in the long run as well, for we would effectively create an in
frastructure for continuously developing and testing the external validity of educa-
tional R&D in this country. We would have a system for guaranteeing better re-
search synthesis [for it must really come together in applied settings| and a means
of integrating educational research with real educational practice.

If we could not begin in all States at once—or if it seems wise to test the idea for
three to five years before making it broadly available—we could begin with a small
set of innovators who also value educational R&D and are ready to invest in it with
the Federal Government. Education in America is everybody's business. The States
and the localities. and the universities and school districts in the country should
join you in thrs undertaking. Better educational research is critical to better learn-
ing—for students—for teachers—for researchers—and cven for policymakers. A
number of States and the educators in them are ready to join vou in support for
increased educational rescarch. 1 applaud vour interest in the field, stand ready to
assist vou in any way it might be helpful. Thank you for the opportunity to speak
with vou today.

But unsatisfiactory past expertences and the size of the Federal deficit have con-
vinced many peaple that the Federal Government cannot do much But they can
Even though the vast amounts of education dollars are spent by local and State gov-
ernments and the private sector, the Federal Government has stronz leveragine
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power. The question thus becomes whether this Federal program can be designed as
an effective catalyst to encourage coordinated use of local. State and private re-
sources to develop a powerful dissemination system for educational research—one
that can reach throughout the country, linking research producers and research
users together for better learning for everyone.

Chairman Owens. Dr. Carlton Brown.

Dr. BRowN. Thank you, Chairman Owens, Mr. Scott and Mr. Bal-
lenger. I am Carlton Brown. Dean of the School of Liberal Arts and
Education at Hampton University, which is an historically black
nonsectarian private institution. We are located in the urban
region of southeastern Virginia and that area includes the cities of
Hampton, Newport News, Norfolk and Virginia Beach. And of
course that is Congressman Scott’s region of the Nation.

I also serve as vice chair to the board of directors of the Holmes
Group which is the consortium of nearly 100 primarily research
universities that have taken on the task of pressing forward sever-
al key reforms in the preparation of educators and in educational
research and development.

The primary goals of the Holmes Group are: one, to make the
education of educators more intellectually responsible; two, to con-
nect our own institutions more directly to schools and to make the
improvement of education a shared agenda; and three, to help
make schools better places for teachers to work and learn and
better places for children to learn and develop.

In this regard, the Michigan Partnership has served for some
time—as it has developed—as a model for us in the significant
aspect of our work which has to do with how States, localities and
universities begin to respond to the research and development in
the school reform agenda.

Additionally, I have recently completed a three-year term as
chair of the Committee on Multicultural Education of the Ameri-
can Association of Colleges for Teacher Education. And, I do want
to mention one final role which I think is relevant here and that is
as a member of the school board of the City of Hampton, Virginia.
I do all of this in my spare time.

[ am here today to testify very strongly on behalf of H.R. 834 and
the reauthorization of OERI. Hampton University has been en-
gaged in the process of preparing teachers and other educators
throughout its 125-year history. The past 20 to 30 years have really
marked its development as an institution with a significant orien-
tation toward research. In the field of education, the university's
involvement in research and development has been heavily marked
by collaboration with the public school systems of our region and
by collaborative wark with other institutions.

These efforts include the design and develooment of locally
useful research and development work as well as inquiry activities
focusing on larger national educational issues and I might note
here, a tremendous involvement through NSF and other organiza-
tions in research and development in assigned education.

This particular approach to collaboration in research and devel-
opment has yielded for us a number of programmatic features be-
tween the school systems and the university to date. Research that
is jointly conducted by the university and school system personnel
on the issues of student assessment for gifted programs and the
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paucity of minority students, for example, led to the development
some years back of a jointly operated gifted and talented assess-
ment and placement program serving all students in the locality
which has doubled the number of successful minority students
placed in gifted and talented vrograms throughout the system.

In fact, we are graduating from high school this year the first
class that includes a number of the students who otherwise would
never have had the opportunity to be placed in gifted programs.
This is as a result of a collaboration on a real problem faced by a
school system. That program actually takes place on the university
campus in a building that was designed primarily to serve as a lab-
oratory school setting for the process of preparing teachers and
conducting research, and it is staffed by school system personnel
and university graduate assistants who have already been trained
as teachers and who are now pursuing advanced degress in various
aspects of education.

Additionally, several alternative programs have also been jointly
developed and operated by the local school system and the univer-
sity through a multifaceted partnership. Our joint efforts tend to
include mixtures of school systems, State, university, and private
foundation funding.

One of the many problems of teacher education surfaced by sev-
eral inquiries during the 1980s is of course the serious disjunction
between teacher education programs on the one hand and what
occurs in student teaching or internships and first year teaching on
the other. ‘

Bridging this disjunction requires the development of a high
class of professionals whose job it is to provide innovative teacher
training and assist prospective teachers in both settings. Hampton
University was one of four sites in the Commonwealth of Virginia
chosen to achieve special State funding to experiment with what
we call clinical faculty programs.

These are specially selected Master Teachers from the local
school system who are trained to play multiple roles in the process
of teacher education at both the university and the school system.

It is expected as we continue development of this program that
these clinical faculty members will be major factors in the transfor-
mation of teacher education at the university and of teacher induc-
tion in the school system.

Additionally, clinical faculty become the primary partners to uni-
versity faculty in the pursuit of research and development focused
on the problems of teaching and learning as they are experienced
by schools, teachers, administrators, and students. This provides
for, under the circumstances, an avenue for research defined by
practice and the problems experienced in actual teaching practice.

Part of what we are after might be best exemplified by another
organization on our campus which is the National Center for Mi-
nority School Education Research and Qutreach which is funded by
the Office of Education. This program is designed to work with un-
derdeveloped and under-represented institutions, primarily Iistori-
cally Black Colleges, those that enroll a significant number of His-
panic students and in two instances, institutions designed specifi-
cally for Native American collegiate education.

7
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We work with those institutions in collaboration with school sys-
tems in their localities to team faculty at the university with per-
sonnel in the school system for the purpose of developing and pur-
suing a research agenda feeding both sets of needs, those of univer-
sity faculty as well as the school system.

I might add that at many of these institutions what we find is
that the faculty, prior to the pursuit of advanced degrees and
placement on university faculty, are generally people with an aver-
age of 12 to 20 years of public school teaching and adm.nistrative
experience. So, they bring with them to the university ihe back-
ground of practice; our task is to reconnect that experience and the
university role back to practice.

We are currently engaged in discussions with the local school
system to extend the set of schools serving as laboratory settings in
which effective educational practices may be developed and validat-
ed. In these settings school personnel and university faculty from
several disciplines, and of course including education, will continue
to collaboratively develop a research and development agenda fo-
cused on the improvement of practice and the reorganization of
schools.

School and university personnel collaboratively engage in re-
search, the initial and continuing education of teachers, curriculum
development and other activities designed to improve practice and
allow for the demonstration of effective designs.

In the Commonwealth of Virginia, five institutions of higher edu-
cation are engaged in forwarding this agenda as members of the
Holmes Group national consortium. We do so through collaborative
work, through the exchange of ideas and successes, and through
collective interaction with the State’s Department of Education in
the creation of a climate for change. One of our more recent en-
deavors is the completion of a case study involving our institution,
the University of Virginia, and Virginia Commonwealth Universi-
ty. The case study is designed to examine our collective and indi-
vidual institutional progress toward Holmes Group goals as well as
the State policy climate for change to address on a larger scale the
kinds of initiatives exemplified by the Michigan Partnership.

While we endorse all parts of the agenda of the Office of Educa-
tional Research and Improvement, we take particular interest in
the dissemination potential of H.R. 836.

Historically, educational research has involved two groupings of
individuals as has been mentioned several times already: research
users and research producers. The same disjunction that exists in
the world of preparing for practice also exists in the world of
knowledge, development dissemination and utilization. While many
seek some balance among the two groups, we take a somewhat dif-
ferent slant. It is the case that to an extent, useful educational re-
search bears some stark contrast to research in many other aca-
demic fields. While much can be said for the importance of more
traditional approaches to research, such as individual inquiry, i« re-
mains the case that many of the other effective inquiries that can
inform the improvement of schooling is heavily informed by -rac-
tice and is largely collaborative in its orientation.

To ensure that educational research becomes more directly
useful to practitioners and that it have a definitive impact on nrac-
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tice, we propose the establishment of laboratories, real school set-
tings in which research and development become collaborative en-
deavors—and of course there is language in H.R. 836 that speaks to
this. In these settings the users and producers of research.are in
large measure the same people. This is the bridging organization
where we begin to blur the lines of distinction between the differ-
ent components of the profession: the skills and capabilities that
university faculty have in research begin to be translated to the
practitioner; the skills, capabilities and perspectives of the practi-
tioner begin to invest themselves in the thinking and the applica-
tion of the researcher.

The problems of education are situation specific but with some
major transportability characteristics to similar settings or prob-
lem situations. The kinds of jointly operated laboratories that we
suggest will be staffed by school system and university personnel.
These settings will function in large measure as do other schools
except for those things specifically oriented toward teacher train-
ing and large scale research aimed at addressing national goals
and State priorities. They will be similarly resourced and of course
there will be some exceptions.

These settings must be largely regulation free to enable them to
more openly address fundamental issues of schooling improvement
through the collaberative thinking and actions of State, local, and
university educational personnel.

In this matrix, the initial education of education professionals
would also take place. And I might adhere that if we prepare the
next generation of education professionals in a matrix where this
kind of activity is taking place, we don't have to be deeply con-
cerned about whether or not the next generation of practitioners
will start off their life as Ms. Crutchfield described. Those problems
will in large measure be resolved because of the nature of the envi-
ronment and what they come to understand constitutes effective
educational practice plus the skills that they will gain in that proc-
ess.

Inquiry and development activities would be jointly determined.
In this way the very best of educational R&D could be effectively
implemented and observed in the work of master teachers who
would also become important implementation consultants to other
schools and school systems seeking to implement proven effective
educational solutions.

Our vision is one in which Federal funds would be allocated to
States allowing them to form partnerships with local school sys-
tems and universities to develop laboratories addressing significant
national, State, and local educational goals and issues. These pro-
grams would operate with mixtures of local school systems, State,
Federal, university and private funding.

It is our view that the improvement of education requires the es-
tablishment of such laboratories, that they be linked to State and
national initiatives. and that they serve as a complex within which
all of the significant issues of educational change and improvement
can be most effectively resolved, validated, and disseminated.

Thank you.

Chairman OwEeNs. Thank you. Thank vou all.

| The prepared statement of Dr Carlton Brown follows]
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STATEMENT OF Dr. CARLTON E. BROWN, DEAN, SCHOOL OF LIBERAL ARTS AND
EpucaTion, Hampron UNtversity. HAMPTON, VIRGINIA

Good morning! Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee. Thank vou for
this opportunity to provide testimony for the reauthorization of H.R. 856. I am Carl-
ton E. Brown, Dean of the School of Liberal Arts and Education at Hampton Uni-
versity. Hampton University is a historically black nonsectarian private institution.
We are located in the urban region of southeastern Virginia which includes the
cities of Hampton. Newport News. Norfolk, and Virginia Beach.

I also serve as Vice Chair to the Board of Directors of the Holmes Group. the con-
sortium of nearly 100 primarily research universities that have taken on the task of
pressing forward several key reforms in the preparation ot educators and in educa-
tional research and development. The primary goals of the Holmes Group are: [1] to
make the education of educators more intellectually responsible, [2} to connect our
own institutions more directly to schools and to make the improvement of education
a shared agenda. and 3} to help make schools better places for teachers to work and
learn. Many of us are working in our own States to establish this important agenda
using the the Michigan Partnership as a model of the kind of State initiative neces-
sary to achieve this agenda. Additionally, I have recently ~ompleted a three-year
term as Chair of the Committee on Multicultural Education of the American Asso-
ciation of Colleges for Teacher Education. The final role that I play which I think is
relevant here is as a member of the School Board of the City of Hampton.

I am here today to testify on behalf of H.R. £36. the Educational Research, Devel-
opment. and Dissemination Excellence Act which reauthorizes the Office of Educa-
tional Research Improvement. Hampton University has been engaged in the process
of preparing teachers and other educators throughout its 123-year history. The past
20 years have marked its development as a research institution. In the field of edu-
cation, Hampton University’s involvement in research and development has been
heavily marked by collaboration with the public school systems of our region. These
efforts include locally useful research and development work as well as inquiry ac-
tivities focusing on national educational issues.

This particular approach to collaboration, research and development has yielded a
number of programmatic features between the school systems and the university to
date. Research jointly conducted by University and school svstem personnel on the
issues of student assessment for gifted programs and the paucity of minority stu-
dents led to the development of jointly operated gifted and talented assessment and
placement programs serving all students in the locality. The program takes place on
the University campus and is staffed by school system personnel and university
graduate assistants. Several alternuative programs have also been jointly developed
and operated by the local school system and the University through a multifaceted
partnership. Our joint efforts include mixtures of school system. State, university,
and private foundation funding.

One of the many problems of teacher education surfaced by inquiries during the
1980s is the serious disjunction between teacher education programs on the one
hand and student teaching and first vear teaching on the other. Bridging this dis-
junction requires the development of a new class of professionals whose job it is to
provide innovative teacher training and assist prospective teachers to make sense of
both settings. Hampton University was one of four sites in the Commonwealth of
Virginia chosen to receive special State funding to experiment with Clinical Faculty
programs.

Clinical Faculty are specially selected Master Teachers from the local school
system who are specially trained to play multiple roles in the process of teacher
education at both the University and the school system. It is expected that clinical
faculty will be major factors in the transformation of tcacher education at the Uni-
versity and teacher induction in the school system. Cinical faculty also become the
primary partners to University faculty in the pursuit of research and development
focused on the problems of teaching and learning as they are experienced by
schools. teachers, administrators, and students. This provides an avenue for re-
search defined by practice and the problems experienced in actual teaching practice.

Given the demopgraphics of education with which vou are familiar, I feel that it is
important to take several steps to include several types of underdeveloped as well as
minority institutions in educational rescarch ventures—particularly those ventures
focused directly on the issues of school reform In this light, I am recommending the
development of a historieally black colleges agenda, language for which can be seen
in several plices in vour proposed bill. As an example. let me cite Hampton Univer-
sity's Center for Minority Special Education Research and Qutreach. This program
1~ funded by the Department of Fdueation and engages i activities designed to in-
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crease the research and grantsmanship involvement of historically black institu-
tions and other institutions with significant minority membership. The Program
does so by requiring faculty in the several institutions that it serves to pair on the
development and execution of a research agenda with personnel in local schnools. As
you can see, this approach is very much in line with the proposals advocated here
and those of the Holmes Group as the best means by which to both increase the
numbers of persons of color and improve the quality and relevance of research to
the field.

We are currently engaged in discussions with our local school system to establish
a set of schools as laboratory settings in which effective educational practices may
be developed and validated. In these settings, school personnel and university facul-
ty from several disciplines to include education will collaboratively develop a re-
search and development agenda focused on the improvement of practice. School and
university personnel will collaboratively engage in research. the initial and continu-
ing education of teachers. curriculum development, and other activities designed to
improve practice and allow for the demonstration of effective designs.

In the Commonwealth of Virginia. five institutions of higher education are en-
gaged in forwarding this agenda as members of the Holmes Group national consorti-
um. We do so through colluborative work, the exchange of ideas and successes, and
through collective interaction with the State’s Department of Education in the cre-
ation of a climate for change. One of our more recent endeavors is a case study in-
volving our institution. the University of Virginia, and Virginia Commonwealth
University. This case study is designed to examine our collective and individual in-
stitutional progress toward Holmes Group goals as well as the State policy climate
for change to address in larger scale the kinds of initiatives exemplified by the
Michigan Partnership.

While we endorse all parts of the agenda of the Office of Educational Research
and Improvement, we take particular interest in the dissemination potential of H.R.
%36. Historically. educational research has involved two groupings of individuals:
Research users and research producers. While many seek balance among the two
groups, we take a somewhat different slant. It is the case that to some extent, useful
educational research bears some stark contrasts to research in many oti.er academic
fields. While much can be said for the importance of more traditional approaches to
research as individual inquiry, it remains the case that much of the more effective
inquiry is heavily informed by practice. and is largely collaborative in its orienta-
tion.

To ensure that educational research becomes more directly useful to practitioners
and that it have a definitive impact on practice. we propose the establishment of
laboratories. real school settings, in which rescarch and development become col-
laborative endeavors. The users and the producers are in large measure the same
people. The problems of education are situation-specific but with major transport-
ability characteristics to similar settings or problem situations. The kinds of jointly
operated laboratories that we suggest will be staffed by school system and universi-
ty personnel. These settings will function as do other schools. They will be similarly
resourced, but with some exceptions. These settings must he largely regulation-free
to enable them to more openly address fundamental issues of schooling improve-
ment through the collaborative thinking and actions of State, local, and university
educational personnel.

In this matrix. the initial education of educati- n professionals would take place.
Inquiry and development issues would be jointly determined. In this way the very
best of educational R&ID could be effectively implemented and observable in the
work of master teachers who would also become important implementation consult-
ants to other schools and school systems seeking to implement proven effective edu-
cational solutions.

Our vision is one in which Federal funds would be allocated to States, allowing
States to form partnerships with local school systems and universities to develop
laboratories addressing significant national, State, and local educational goals and
issues. Programs would operate with mixtures of local school system, State, Federal,
university, and private funding. It is our view that the improvement of education
requires the establishment of such laboratories. linked to State and national initia:
tives, serving as a complex within which all of the significant issues of ecucational
change and improvement can be most effectively resolved, validated. and dissemi-
nated Only m such settings can the needs of any eategory of children at risk re-
coeve the attention necessary.

Chairman Owens. Ms. Crutchficld, I want to thank you for the
term innovation demonstration site. When 1, as Chairman of the
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Subcommittee on Select Education, tell people that we are respon-
sible for educational research and development, they often say:
:Ve don’t need any more studying, just go out there and do some-
thing.

Most people are willing to accept that research and development
in business or in agriculture or in defense means more than just
academic study, but when it comes to education, they immediately
Jump to the conclusion that we are talking about regular academic
study. So, from now on, I will say that my committee is responsible
for oversight of innovation demonstration sites.

We certainly appreciate your testimony and the “right-on-the-
firing-line™ quality of it. I am troubled by the fact Mr. Taubman
started out by saving that most businesses also are turning sour.
We very much need that business involvement. Qur whole model of
the learning grant institution and district agent stresses that need.

We need to include people from a cross-section of business and
labor because we feel the involvement of that sector is very impor-
tant to keep the process going and avoid traditionalism from taking
over so that you can have a new system of training people to do
what they did before without getting outside insight.

Mr. Taubman, can you elaborate on what you mean when you
say that businesses are turning sour? What steps can we take to
keep them in the process?

Mr. TausMaN. Business, of course has always been a supporter of
research. The idea of government research is something that I
think businesses are questioning. If OERI provides financial sup-
por:i for matching funds, we have to go to business to get matching
funds.

But, we have to have their confidence that on a systemic basis
our programs are going to be supported. When business turns sour,
I think business turns sour on all government, not specifically re-
search in education. The delivery systems in education have really
been poor, probably more than most things in government. It is un-
derstandable if they are not getting the delivery, they would feel
sour about anything that has to do with State government or State
government financed education.

Chairman Owens. How do you see yourself having an impact on
licensing and certification? How does vour work impact on that?

Mr. Tausman. Well, the change at Michigan State, a great deal
of which has to do with Dr. Lanier. who was previously chairman
of that department, had to do with the change in implementing our
educational collaboration. Out of this came an opportunity for a
new kind of certification.

Again, our concern really has to do with the structure that we
already live with which is the fact that teachers are often given
tenure in most States at the end of three vears; in universities it
takes 10 years, 20 years, or maybe never. This contrasts sharply
with all business in America where tenure nieans the next hour in
terms of productivity and delivery of productivity.

Unfortunately the structure has given us a way that productivity
does not necessarily become important. What we are trying to
demand is that productivity in the school by the workforee is im-
portant.

Chairman Owens. Do vou want to comment?




Dr. Lanigr. Yes, 1 would like to comment on that. Mr. Owens,
and relate it to research. One of the things that we are working
toward here grew out of an early discussion that Mr. Taubman and
1 had relative to the preparation of teachers. The idea eariy on,
when we were discussing alternative certification—what we called
90-day wonders in the preparation of people for work in schools—
was that part of the problem is that today’s schools are not the
right places for preparing tomorrow’s teachers.

If we are unhappy with the way they are currently operating—
not adequately acting on the basis of research and best knowledge
of what we know would work better for students—-we need to
create these sites and then use them as bases of judgments when
people intern over time in them, whether they learn and can use
what they know in their work with students. In a sense you let the
preparation programs vary, but you hold constant the assessment
of performance in these sites which engage in education and appli-
cation of R&D in new. different, and stronger ways than they have
heretofore.

So the certification issues eventually will be tied to internships
in settings of the sort that we described. Dr. Brown commented
that this is part of the goal of the Holmes Group and others: to
raise the expectations and the norms for those who are learning to
teach and will work with our children.

Chairman Owens. I think that would be a good byproduct of the
collaboratives that are funded under Title IV. I appreciate your
thorough analysis of Title IV and the fact that you were quite posi-
tive about it.

For a long time I had to struggle with everybody, including my
staff, to get them to see the wisdom of that section of the bill and
the analogy with the land grant colleges and the experimental sta-
tions; the county agents and the district education agents.

Dr. LANIER. If you don’t acknowledge some of the weaknesses
and struggles they have had with those two systems.

Chairman Owerns. We deliberately wanted to maintain maxi-
mum flexibility; therefore, we didn’t call them learning grant uni-
versities. We don’t even make it necessary for them to be nonprof-
it. We left the flexibility there because we fear them becoming
more system-like, becoming more traditional and just being taken
over, freezing out some of the more innovative segments of the pop-
ulation, including the business sector, if they are controlled too
much by the old university system, special schools of education and
professional schools.

As a result of your comments and the way your partnership
works, we are going to go back and take a hard look at that section
and how we can reshape it, but we want to make it breathe and
not put it in a situation where it may be smothered by academia.

Dr. Lanizr. 1 want to respond to that if I might. I purposefully
used the term learning grant institution. not university. I don’t
make those synonymous; I am thinking more like the partnership
schools that would be these institutions where you bring the part-
ners together.

A university would have to be at the table—maybe not in your
scheme—but for the investment of R&D in a serious
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Chairman OweNs. We assume in the majority of the cases that
would be so. It would be based in the university in the majority of
the cases. Professional schools like schools of education, of course,
is obvious, but how do we get the best of it without there being a
danger of smothering?

We have a problem now because they have not done a good job.

Dr. Lanigr. I think that is right when they begin partnering.
First of all, the ones that will come want to do this work. As Mr.
Taubman said, we have half of them and we are trying to lure
others to participate with us because it is very hard work. Once the
university faculty joins with school and community participants as
well, everybody learns, I think. Arrogance and the *‘keep things as
usual” attitude won’t work in those settings.

Cheirman OweNs. So you would say grants should go only to uni-
versity educational institutions that already have some collabora-
tion going——

Dr. LaNigr. For a business plan to move in that direction.

Chairman OweNs. And already have it going.

Dr. LaNIER. Applied settings.

Chairman OweNs. Yes, Mr. Taubman.

Mr. TAUBMAN. Yes, I agree with that. As we discussed, the pro-
gram really has to be starting or even in place before I would rec-
ommend any kind of support; otherwise there is going to be a lot of
leakage in terms of how these funds are really controlled and how
they are used.

Research really has to be where we know there is an opportunity
to build on it.

Chairman Owens. Dr. Brown. I am really skirting around the
edges in terms of academia and my suspicions that it might smoth-
er innovation.

Dr. BRowN. When we talk about the requirement that there be a
collaboration, I think we are using it as a safeguard so that it does
not get swallowed up in traditional university business. The
Holmes Group has literally taken the positivn that unless we estab-
lish such collaboratives, unless they become the central focus for
all educational improvement, then none of the goals that we seek
will be realized. So I would endorse the idea that there has to at
least be a business plan approved with a viable partnership with
some clear and accepted settings in which this activity will occur
and that all of the key parties be committed to that agenda.

Even if it .5 not as {ull blown as Michigan—everybody is trying
to still figure out how Michigan did what it did—there has to be at
least a plan struggling in that direction or you will in fact run the
risk of throwing some good money after some other money.

Chairman OwEeNs. [ want to close out by saying that I think
teachers ought to be more readily acceptable of changes than farm-
ers. It was not easy to convince farmers to use the results of the
agriculture experiment stations. They had a difficult time in the
early days trying to get farmers to apply what was known. but
they got on board because they saw what works and saw that farm-
ers who accepted it prospered and went ahead.

So what works is very important [ suppose in convincing your
rolleagues to really stay with this innovation demonstration proc-
ess fed by basic rescarch. The problem that I encounter most when
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I talk to teachers in the field is the discipline problem and the
problem of today’s youngsters being more difficult than they were
20 years ago. Ms. Crutchfield, has the involvement in the collabora-
tive really worked in terms of helping with the discipline problem
and keeping the most difficult students on track to improve their
performance?

Ms. CrUTCHFIELD. Yes. Those of us who are on board with the
collaborative efforts have seen a great change in student behavior
and the indepthness as far as the content of the subject matter.

You could say it is depth instead of breadth; it is like they are
going deeper into conceptual things. They are really learning and
can go and express it to visitors who come in our building. It is a
whole different culture.

Chairman OwenNs. In 3 years you have seen some real changes in
performance?

Ms. CruTcHFIELD. Yes, we have seen some real changes in 3
years. We don't have our total staff on board yet; we are still invit-
ing people to participate. But, in three years, you can walk in and
tell the difference. People who visited three years ago and come
back now, say you can see a difference.

We still have some behavioral problems but they are not at all
like they were. I think the main reason is the collaboraiive efforts.
Of course we are teaching kids that when they get into the society,
they are going to have to learn how to work with people and to
collaborate action; that is what success is about.

Mr. TauBMAN. Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Owens. Yes, Mr. Taubman.

Mr. TausMaN. Chairman Owens, as chairman of the Michigan
Partnership for New Education. I want to invite you and your com-
mittee to Michigan to actually see a school setting. 1 know you are
very busy, all of you, but I think it would be very important that
you see the way this functions.

The teachers accept the idea that children come to school with
knowledge and they try to build on that knowledge. Children are
working together as teams; they get the opportunity to communi-
cate and to help each other learn.

This is a marvelous idea and one that we didn't think of initially.
It was thought of by a lot of other people, but we have been able to
build on this. It has not been easy.

Dr. Brown pointed out that he can’t figure out how we did it
well, I can't figure out how we did it, either. We still haven’t done
it; we are struggling.

On the other hand, Governor Engler has been a big proponent of
this program. He has been working very hard to get funding for
the program which he considers as one of the methods of building a
strong educational system in Michigan.

Chairman Owens. Dr. Brown, you had a comment?

Dr. BRown. Yes, I just wanted to follow up on Ms. Crutchfield’'s
comments. Among the things wrong with what we do that has not
been mentioned here today is that we have generally caused teach-
ers to have to deal with what they deal with isolated and alone.
Consequently. in most schools, there is no one to hounce your
thoughts off of. There is no premium on risk-taking. so the safe
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thing for teachers is to do the best they can and try to keep a lid
on it so no one thinks that they are not good.

The collaborative surrounds every teacher with assistance, with
people to talk to at a variety of levels, with ways to look at a prob-
lem from a variety of perspectives, and ways to design and experi-
ment with solutions. It even impacts how we go about evaluating a
teacher's performance. One of the things we want to get into that
process is to what extent the teacher was able to identify and
pursue particular problems.

Currently, the way it is structured in most schools is if the teach-
er says I have a problem, we evaluate that as teacher ineffective.
We have got to reverse this whole set of things. That is one of the
reasons why so much has not happened positively in schools.

Chairman OweNs. Mr. Ballenger.

Mr. BALLENGER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. [ would like to add
to the sourness that Mr. Taubman spoke about because in our man-
ufacturer company back home, I think we pay about $500,000 or
$600,000 a year in property taxes of which 40 percent goes into the
educational system and then we have workers who have graduated
from high school and they can’t read or write. Let me tell you what
we did—I didn’t do it, somebody who is running my place right
now did something. Excuse me, sir.

Mr. TAuBMAN. Excuse me, I am sorry.

Mr. BALLENGER. He extended the plant, and he had a corner that
he thought was left over, so they built a classroom to teach people
how to run printer presses and operating the mechanics and the
engineering of this stuff.

I was just there about three weeks ago and he said the greatest
thing has happened. We had that classroom but we weren't using it
except one day a week. We started checking our employees and we
have 35 Vietnamese, which means that a lot of them don’t speak
English very well. We also found out that some of the other em-
ployees obviously couldn’t read or write very well. So, we went to
the community college system and said if we got a classroom and
give our employees an hour a day, would they send us a teacher.

And I mean this is the sourness of business on the education. We
are now in the classroom every day, one hour a day, five days a
wleek and we try to have it available for all three shifts at the
plant.

But that was just one of the things that as I say business is
trying to do it. I am sort of like Dr. Brown, I don't know how
Michigan did it. I am sitting here trying to figure out. You said the
governor has gotten involved.

Dr. Lanier had to be there, and Mr. Taubman, you mentioned 5
years ago you were interested. Somebody had to get the ball rolling
somewhere. Dr. Brown, I agree with you. I don't know which one.,
the chicken or the egg came first but somebody there started it.
And I just ccmmend you highly for it.

I would like to ask Ms. Crutchfield—you did mention that every-
body wasn't on board yet in your school—is therc a difficulty
amongst, shall we say, the faculty of the school in their willingness
to drive into something new like- this?

Ms. CruTcHFIELD. As Chairman Owens said, a few minutes carli-
er, of course some of them are a little nervous and still are It is a
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risky kind of thing and it is hard work and a lot of hours that we
put into this, but as they see the rest of us being successful, getting
our kids involved in our academics, they are coming on board. We
have just about 85 percent of them on board now; we expect the
other 15 this next year.

Mr. BaLLeNGER. If I might ask, the Flint School System is prob-
ably having a terrible economy right now, at least that is what I
understood, and the school system is probably funded mostly from
the local and State level. I believe somewhere the education in
Michigan might have been assisted by outside money. but was the
local school system level commitment from business cr somebody
;ha:it came in with additional money or did you do it "vith what you

ad?

Mr. TAUuBMAN. Well, we have a $48 million 5-year program in
Michigan of which we fund a third, a third and a third. That is the
private sector, a third; our State government a third—and this is
over and above our State education budget—and the universities
contribute either in kind or in funds.

So consequently they get acditional support from the Michigan
Partnership for these schools to restructure the schools and to
teach and retrain the teachers in the system. The collaboration of
the universities is part of their funding in kind; they bring their
people down to work in the schools and to teach in the schools,
which Ms. Crutchfield mentioned.

Dr. Lanigr. Could I just add to that, Mr. Ballenger? Before when
you asked Ms. Crutchfield about the school faculty and their will-
ingness and readiness, I should say that not all of the university
faculties are wildly enthusiastic about this kind of program either,
so training and motivation is important at that level as well. Do, it
means getting training for faculty both from the school and from
the university and gradually moving toward greater participation.

Mr. TauBMAN. We have 19 schools open. Dr. Lanier and I always
felt that we needed 200 schools open but we have 3,600 schools in
Michigan and about 1.6 million students.

We really need support for this because we have roughly a year
and a half to go on our five-year program. It is not a question of
our program; we are one of a half dozen programs that I know of in
the United States that are going forward on their own without any
Federal support at this time, trying to do innovative programs for
change and the collaborative programs we have been discussing.

As we mentioned before. we feel that Federal support to these
innovation programs will cause a virus in terms of all the other
schools.

In Ms. Crutchfield’s district, the northwest section of Flint, al-
though they have four schools open, there are probably eight or ten
schoole involved in the process right now because teachers talk to
teachers and the principals talk to principals and the superintend-
ent is very much behind the program, so the whole program is
going to feed on itself; plus the fact that we have local area part-
nerships.

In Muskegon, there is a roundtable of businessmen who are sup-
porting their school. What we are trying to do is get the support in
each local level. The two new schools we are opening up in Detroit
have a loeal group sponsoring the program
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~ So we are trying to use our funds as best we can. Your question
Is a very good one, Congressman, if you have time for a quick story.

Mr. BALLENGER. You have to ask ¢ur Chairman.

Chairman OwEeNs. Go on.

Mr. TausMAN. Our going from year to yvear reminds me of a
story about a prince in a civil principality who had captured all the
countries around him. He got bored and he looked down and saw
f}}lis horse and he said, gee, it would be wonderful if my horse could

y.
So he called in all his magicians and one by one he asked them
the question: “Can you make my horse fly?"’ The first one said, I
could probably make him disappear, but I can't make him fly.” The
prince said, “Put him in the dungeon.” When they brought the
next one up, he said, “I don’t think I can make him fly but I might
make him learn how to sing.” “No, no, no,” said the prince. “Put
him in the dungeon.” The next fellow obviously got wise to this. He
walked up and said, “I think I can make him fly but I need a
year.” The prince said, “You need a year; I think that is reasona-
ble. Go away and make him fly.”

So as he is walking away his assistant runs after him. He says,
“You know you can’t make that horse fly, why did you agree to
make him fly?” He said, “Lots of things can happen in a year.
Nurmber one, the horse can die. Number two, the prince could die.
Number three, I could die. And number four, who knows, in a year
we might make him fly.”

Well, that is like us; we are working year to year and we are
hoping to make the horse fly.

Mr. BALLENGER. I can understand that. Dr. Brown, you were dis-
cussing the emotional support, the support, the interaction in the
classroom between teachers and assistants and so forth. Mr. Den-
ning dreamed up a long time ago about quality circles and we
didrﬁ’t use it in this country. It went to Japan and now it i- coming
back.

And your discussion of that assistance that the classroom teach-
ers get and the ability to interchange with other teachers, the ideas
and so forth, very strange at least in my mind, appear somewhat to
approach quality circles or that general idea that we are trying to
develop in our industry today.

Mr. BrRowN. It very much does do that. It is important to note
that practically every other thing that we do in this Nation that is
strong and effective involves people collaborating with each other,
working in teams, communicating across several lines, sharing
problems, and solutions.

It is unique to me that education is one of the last remaining in-
stitutions in which work is done in isolation, vet education keeps
coming up as the arena in which we expect the most.

If you have an arena in which you expect the most, then you
have to apply your most effective strategies and your most cogent
resources to that. But, historically we have found this is not the
case.

In the history of cducation in this century, I count this as at
least the third time that we have rediscovered this reality. The
first was during some of the off-shoot experiments of progressive
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era and some experiments that John Dewey conducted in his labo-
ratory school.

One of the follow-up eras was, for example, the era of the Teach-
er Corps in which we trained teachers in settings in which univer-
sity personnel and school personnel collaborated on issues of school
improvement to great benefit. You might have guessed by now that
my background is in educational foundations, including educational
history and philosophy. Part of my concern is that we finally
invent a way to cause this to happen and leave it to institutional-
ization.

My big question as an historian is why it didn’t institutionalize
the last two times and why it should this time. I think the nature
of collaborations we are talking about and how we manage stand-
ard resources in process provide a large part of the answer.

Mr. BALLENGER. I think that is an excellent explanation of the
whole system and the one question I would bring up when you all
sit down and figure out which one was the chicken and which one
was the egg. If we can do that 50 times in each State, we might
really be able to accomplish a great deal.

Dr. BrRowN. Let me change your analogy a little bit.

Mr. BALLENGER. Okay.

Dr. Brown. I think that what we are really doing is stirring the
primordial soup again with the understanding that we know most
of what is in the soup and we know something about what causes
the primordial soup to give off life forms and let the chicken-and-
egg situation determine itself.

Mr. BALLENGER. I will go along with that.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman OwENs. Mr. Scott.

Mr. Scorr. I guess I want to get back to one of the questions |
asked of the last panel and that is that we know certain interven-
tions work or at least some interventions work. We have been able
to change odds in certain classroom settings from where a class
that would be predicted to be in the 20th percentile ends up in the
50th percentile because you did something.

We know some Head Start programs are excellent and some are
marginal. From a research point of view, do we know the answers
to this, what makes programs—what we can do to better educate
at-risk children? Do we know that or dc we need more research?

Chairman Owgns. Does it mean more research or do we need
more innovation demonstration sites?

Dr. LaNiEr. [ am happy to respond to that. I think that we know
a lot more than we currently act on in terms of at-risk youngsters
and what can affect theni and make their learning of higher qual-
ity and available to more children than we have ever reached here-
tofore.

I think you heard here today some of the reasons why we think
that does not happen. We continue to prepare our education force
in most any place. They learn their practice in schools without a
lot of quality control on the part of the institutions. For example. if
vou send out a beginning teacher, typically they will end up in
these isolated classrooms where they will not have the opportunity
to learn from others. They are not necessarily apt Lo see or experi-
ence their own learning insights that demonstrate 1esearch.
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Mr. Scort. Let me back up a second. Do we know if they are
éearni)ng from others; is the knowledge there to teach at-risk stu-

ents:

Dr. LaNIER. There is a substantial amount of knowledge. I can
give you some examples of pieces of knowledge. For example, you
know if a child does not have the opportunity to learn important
subjects, they are not going to learn them in those settings.

In one of the schools that is not in the Flint situation, the way
they have the research on tracking youngsters and how students
get tracked into classes where they don't have an opportunity to
learn is a very powerful line of research. Finding places that dem-
onstrate this and actually act on that research are smaller in the
number part of the research dissemination issue. In this particular
school, where they were studying this research about access and
tracking issues, they decided that the way in which the school was
putting people in honors classes was unfair and unjust because
many of the youngsters who were considered at-risk did not have
access to those classes. It took a schoolwide, communitywide effort
on the part of the educators to think profoundly about how they
would change it.

Three-quarters of the kids didn't get access to honors class and
were not going to learn some of those things except by happen-
stance in their lives.

So they acted on this research by making all of these classes
available and opening them up so that all students have an oppor-
tunity to learn those higher goals for student learning. Acting on
that piece of research is something that a single teacher cannot do
alone. You can know about it but what can you do? You think, I
have got to change the whole high school, which is what they had
to do.

They effectively set goals at levels which students could achieve.
It oftentimes takes schoolwide efforts to act on that research.

If future teachers are not prepared in those sites that are acting
on that research, they don’t know any different when they go out,
and we constantly have a remedial problem with our educational
workforce. I think there is a lot that we already know.

Some schools, not all, but a growing number—particularly those
that are working on these kinds of problems—are acting on that
kind cf research. Mr. Scott, I think it is fair to say that we still
have a lot more to learn, and the fact that we can be carrying on
this kind of research in sites like in Flint, in Muskegon, in Detroit
and a number of urban centers, we can get a lot smarter about
that because there hasn’t been enough in those areas in particular.

Dr. BRowN. If I can add a couple things to that. Yes, we do know
as was suggested, much, much more than we have ever applied and
we have also never applied what we know in the kind of systematic
way that causes it to work.

There is a whole ledger of negative findings that says we tried
this, and 1 am paraphrasing a principal I tried to work with in an-
other State several years ago. “We tried that in 1954 and it didn't
work.” What happens is this: an approach to teaching and learning
is designed, teachers are prepared to work within with a particular
group of children. Tt is implemented very carefully, the fi dings
are positive It is decumented, it is published. it is disseminated.
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Others get a hold of it—superintendents, faculty at universities,
or principals—and say this is a good idea; they take this single arti-
cle, capsuling several years of work by 20 people, and they hand
this article to a couple of teachers or a supervisor and say let's im-
plement this in September.

So what you have got is the name of a particular approach to
teaching and the learning and the shell of that approach. but none
of the guts. Consequently, they may have implemented an ap-
proach, but when it fails, they go back usually to a more conserva-
tive version of what they were doing before.

What we need to do is to talk about how we go about implement-
ing proven effective schemes. It is a detailed process. Education is
the most complex and complicated thing we do. It involves human
beings who, as all of us know, are much more complex than any-
thing else. And it involves them in groups that have their own
complexity and form their own identity. Implementation of any
scheme has to involve factoring all of this over time with what are
called successive approximations to the full scheme.

The other thing is that to the extent that the people who popu-
late our schools and our universities are citizens of this country,
then they also constitute a microcosm of that country so that if the
society holds certain negatives, certain types of kids, there is no
way that we should assume that people who hold the same nega-
tives have not found their way inside schools and universities and
are therefore part of what happens to kids.

Thirdly, the paradigm that we have been on for the past 20 vears
for at-risk kids takes the deadliest forms of instruction imaginable
and provides it for kids for whom the very best and most innova-
tive and creative instruction is required.

We have run a number of experiments over time about what you
can do. Many, many years ago there was research done on expecta-
tion theory, which was really a trick. Some teachers were tricked
into believing that a certain group of kids were capable of great
learning and consequently they achieved great learning. So that
says a lot about what we. as educators, expect from the people in
front of us.

Other experiments have included taking the gifted curriculum,
which is supposed to be very compiex and detailed for very fine
minds, and using it with kids who are just barely above survival in
schools and finding out that the depth, the involvement. and the
excitement of that material in fact creates a cognitive pressure, it
creates a desire to know and to be able to do.

Finally, one of the byproducts from Flint that 1 saw a couple of
years ago was a videotape of some interviews of middle school kids.
There were some revealing and interesting things in that process.
They asked the students about various aspects of school: what they
liked, what thev didn't like. They didn't like the usual things,
except the one kid who liked math. They talked about social stud-
ies and how boring the society studies curriculum was and what
they studied. And then they asked about their lives and the kids
talked about things like getting off the bus at the end of the school-
day. rushing quickly into their homes, locking the doors, and stay-
ing away from the windows: that they cannot go out to play be-
cause of the patential for violence in certain segments of the city.
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Now. you want to talk about powerful social studies. How does it
occur that the very lives of these children cannot find their way
into the social studies of the school? Their lives, the social studies
of their lives are the crux of the American dilemma and constitute
some extremely involving and exciting stuff; yet, somehow that
never finds its way in too many schools to which kids are exposed.

One of the things we know about learning for any group of
people is that the more exciting and personal the material. the
more conflict is embedded in what it is we are trying to get them
to learn; the more we cause kids to work together in the process of
learning, the deeper the learning; the more the kids themselves
focus on skills, the more the kids themselves retain; the more excit-
ed the kids are about spending time and energy on this material,
the more kids want to come to school. In the examples that were
cited earlier, kids who are working in teams form a partnership;
things are going on.

Kids who choose to be absent find themselves missing out on the
essence of what middle school life and elementary school life is all
about to kids: being with your friends: so you create a pressure to
be there. There is this whole range, this whole complex of factors
that we have to learn how to manipulate; if we learn how to ma-
nipulate them well and deal in a4 very honest and up front fashion
with the realities that we are facing, then 1 think that we can
create and implement much more effective programs for at-risk
children.

Mr. ScorT. If the Chairman will recognize that this is a relevant
discussion, how can H.R. 856 help get that information into the
classroom so that, for example, at-risk students don’t have the
lower expectations inflicted on them and come out with the lower
achievement?

How do we use, amend. or change H.R. 856 to make sure we get
the best result?

Dr. Brown. Well, I think what you have in place, at least in my
reading of the bill, addresses a lot of that. I think if I would recom-
mend any change, it would be to infuse every aspect of the bill
with some responsibility for focusing on issues of at-risk children,
focusing on issues related to the increasing diversity of this society.
and focusing on issues that have to do with the quality of life of
children in cur urban centers and in our extreme rural areas. If we
could infuse the entirety with that kind of language. then we
would cause every person involved with this process to necessarily
begin to address the issues and that would in wrn influence how
research is carried out, how it is disseminated. and what its major
focus will be.

I think that those kinds of changes would help tremendously, but
I think the guts are clearly there.

Mr. Scorr. Any other comments?

Mr. TAuBMAN. Our classrooms are more diverse than ever. In a
classroom setting with young people working together as teams,
vou have the opportunity to create a new social communication
among people at a very carly age. Whatever research you may do,
the strengthening of that kind of relationship s the most impor-
tant because people can learn together and be togetner at an early
age and grow up that way. That is truly diversity reform
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Dr. Lanier. In response to your question about how to strength-
en the bill, I would suggest that we create these sites. That actual-
ly demonstrates what we know from current research.

The expectation literature would be very important as would
tracking literature. If you have them actually demonstrated in real
sites and then couple the dissemination through the educators
being prepared for our future in those sites, they are learning with
teachers who maintain high expectations, who understand that lit-
erature and act on it appropriately for children. Then they become
the mentors for future educators who in fact carry it with them in
their minds and hearts when they work with young people in the
future rather than simply putting it, the findings. and expectancy
in a book for someone to read and maybe act upon.

Ms. CRUTCHFIELD. | would agree with Dr. Lanier. Being a teacher
when the partnership first came to our school, being able to have
the kind of expertise that I brought to this partnership and the
kind that the Michigan State professors brought to the relationship
really made a difference; the fact that it was available to me right
there on site made me work harder.

I would not walk away from whatever it was that I did not know
or couldn’t figure out. I would get home and still call back to
Michigan State and say, Chris, can you help me with this or what
do you think about this? So I would like to urge you to think about
these sites as being the right place for applying the educational
academics with the kids, putting everything right in front with
them; whatever is happening.

We have got quite a bit of research out there, but we need to
bring it closer to where it is going to be applied; put it in applica-
tion with the students and use it.

Mr. Scorr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Owens. Well, all of you certainly would make good
candidates for the OERI priority review board. This has been en-
iightening. We invite you to submit any additional comments
within the next 10 days.

We find your comments quite helpful as we refine the present
bill and move toward markup. Thank vou again. This hearing is
now adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 1:05 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]

[ Additioral material submitted for the record follows.|
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STATEMENT OF THE AMERICAN EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH ASSOCIATION'S HisPANIC
RESEARCH & IN BILINGUAL EDUCATION SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS

As the United States prepares to enter the 2lst century it is important to high-
light the need for extensive research concerning the Latino Community. This popu-
lation has grown at a fantastic rate in the last two decades and is likely to continue
growing. In many urban communities and schools, Latinos are the largest growing
minority group. Yet relatively little is known about the nature of these communi.
ties.

Research is needed to understand the heterogeneity which is characteristic of
communities of Latinos. Because of a common linguistic and cultural heritage. the
Latino communities are often seen as homogeneous by mainstream researchers. As
a result, there is very little useful knowledge about specific needs and the nature of
problems of particular Latino communities in different geographic areas of the U.S.
A major research question that needs to addressed immediately is, Who is the
Latino Community in the U.S.? This will be an important first step in documenting
the heterogeneity of the communities. A logical second research question, then, is.
What are the implications of this diversity? For examples, what is the significance
of the multiple Latino Communities in Los Angeles, New York, Washington. DC.
and other large cities? Are there similarities and/or differences with respect to
educational, health. political. social and other needs and problems? Educators. pol-
icymakers. and community agencies do not really have a clear enough understand-
ing of the Latino Community to address the question in an informed and positive
manner. An important reason for conducting more extensive and intensive research
is to diminish the negative impressions that have been promulgated by the media
and others about the Latino Community. Much of the information that trickles into
the public media and the public consciousness about Latinos 1s negative. (Fang vio-
lence, drugs. poor academic performance, language deficiencies, et cetera, are the
dominant themes. Research is needed to promote the positive aspects and contribu-
tions of these communities. A focus on knowledge that the Latino Community can
share with the larger society would be but one of the many benefits that would
result from a new research focus.

Sharing what we already know as researchers of and from minority communities
is of particular importance to us. We feel that there is a body of knowledge about
the education of Latino children. that has been ignored by researchers who are in-
terested in educational reform in general. For example. one of the issues is school
restructuring: the literature shows that school restructuring entails changes in the
tundamental organization of schools [Newmann & Clune. 1992: Hess, 1992: Murphy.
19911 A number of recent case studies give a sense of the nature of such reorganiza-
tion as it affects the “at-risk” student population [Coleman & Hofer, 1957 Smith,
1959; Wehlage. et al.. 19849]. Lueas. Henze & Donato [1999] also comprehensively ox-
amine the structural features of schools that seemed to promote succes among lan-
guage-minority students. Yet, the latter study is seldom cited in the literature on
school restructuring. Similar cases can be found in other arcas of reform: systemic
curriculum reform. de-tracking, home-schoolcommunity patterns, and others [See
Ruiz. 1493 for a review of the literature on language minorities and how it fits into
the general literature on education and education reform}. The relationship between
minority research and general education research is important. We feel it not only
raises questions about fit. it alsa raises questions about whose knowledge is valued.
We feel it is important to ask. would the findings about Latinos and language mi-
nority students benefit other students and the educational system as a whole? To
answer such a question and to take this research from the periphery to the center
of the Titerature will be important to us and to the many public school districts
around the country given the changes in demographics.

Particularly important 1s that we share some of the things we do know—that de-
spite the common cultural backgraund and language. the Latino community is di-
verse, that a strong foundation in one's first language, whatever it 1s. is erucial to
amy academic achievement. and that biliteracy development 1< an asset in cogpitive
development

Bevond sharing, we need to move mto researching areas that are critical such as
assessnent ang the development of successful hilingual programs. For example,
the lederally suvported evaluations of bilingual services [and concurrently, services]
have tpwally focused on shortterm wouls and on the progress uf students in the
Frgtish Tanenage The difficulty with this approach i that neither gives the educa
tor a true prictuec of what i happening The Hawthorne offects i the first few
vears the flattening of normal grawth curves on <andardized tests in subsequent
sears and the progressive compleaity of acadenue and comitive demands of the cur
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riculum affect the results. Furthermore, we already have significant research show-
ing that it takes a minimum of 7-12 years to be as proficient as a native speaker
and capable of undertaking with confidence and effectiveness the cognitive and aca-
demic demands of schooling [See Collier. Bilingual Research Journal. Winter 1992
for a synthesis on this literature]. Thus. both the definition of the nature of the
problem under study and the methodological designs have been inadequate.

We strongly recommend Federal funding of research on language minority educa-
tion that recognizes the need for long-term and comprehensive views of student
achievement and program implementation. Broadening the range of measures and
moving towards performance assessment is strongly recommended by the reform
movement. We believe this is a sound strategy. Language minority student achieve-
ment should not rely on the sole measures resulting from English standardized tests
that ultimately only measure the students’ English language proficiency. To do re-
search which only takes English language into account is inadequate because the
findings are very narrow and. second. because standardized tests are not adequate
measures of language proficiency. The relationships between thought. language and
learning among bilinguals are complex and call for measures of student achieve-
ment in the first language and of using a variety of measures across time. To do this
is to ensure the possibility of obtaining a more comprehensive picture of the stu-
dents’ academic success. rather than solely the measurement of English. The re-
search question for language minorities should go bevond the mere duplication of
the research on the reform movement findings with respect to the value of multiple
performance measures. it should be asking: Which measures are more appropriate
and for what purpose?

A large body of research shows that the greater the amount of first language in-
struction combined with balanced second language support. the higher the students
are able to achieve academically over time [Ramicez. 1990). The two-way. or develop-
mental bilingual programs have been found to be the most outstanding program
models for the language minority child. Furthermore. these models have been inclu-
sive of English speakers and been proven to be very cost-effective. Research should
focus on these programs. What are the characteristics of these modeis? How is lan-
guage learning conceptualized and developed in these settings?

In relation t» the effective models. we know that there are alarming numbers of
Latinos dropping out of middle and high schools. The findings on dropouts indicate
that the SES. language proficiency, and ethnicity interact Minicucei & Olsen {1902
found that even in the best schools in California. lanpuage minority students are
denied access to the core curriculum and. therefore become ineligible for continuing
higher education. There is an emerging hody of research that shows that when lan-
guage minority students receive bilingual services, they do better in school {Grannis
& Torres-Guzman, 19901 We also recommend that research focus on identifying ef-
fective hilingual models that go beyond the elementary schools,

This 1 a synthesis of ideas contributed by the chairs of the respective SIGs—FEllen
Clark and Virginia Collier—and some members, presented in alphabetical order—
Fsteban Diaz, Richard Ruiz and Maria E. Torres-Guzman
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